
n y

Lori A. Shibinetic

Commissioaer

Christine L. Santiniello

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax: 603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

October 12, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to enter into a Retroactive, Sole Source amendment to an existing contract
with FIT/NHNH, Inc. (VC#157730-B001), Manchester, NH for the ongoing provision of Permanent
Housing and Supportive Services to individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness
through the Federal Continuum of Care Program, by exercising a renewal option by increasing
the price limitation by $107,937 from $200,515 to $308,452 and by extending the completion date
from June 30, 2021, to August 31, 2021, effective October 1, 2020, upon Governor and Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019, item #46
and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on May 6, 2020, item #37.

Funds are. available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2022, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class 1

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308314

$99,046 $0 $99,046

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308317

$101,469 $78,023 $179,492

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42308317

$0 $29,914 $29,914

Total $200,515 $107,937 $308,452

The Deparlment of Heallh and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve heallh and independence.
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EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive because the U.S. Department of Housing and Development
(HUD) grant award required an expansion to the scope of work for this contract In order to
consolidate sen/ices provided by the vendor in another contract which expired September 30.
2020, (Continuum of Care, Concord Community Permanent Housing, approved by Governor and
Council on June 19, 2019, Item #46).. Additional time was needed to negotiate and finalize the
revised scope of work prior to the vendor accepting the terms of the agreement. Approval of this
amendment, with the retroactive effective date of October 1, 2020, will prevent a lapse in services
critical to the Department's ability to ensure availability of permanent housing options and
homeless outreach services In Merrimack County. This request Is Sole Source because federal
regulations require the Department to specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal
Continuum of Care Program renewal application process, prior to the grant award being issued.
Based on the application evaluation process. HUD directs the Department to provide grant awards
and the specific amounts to vendors.

The purpose of this request is to continue a Permanent Housing Program that delivers
rental and leasing assistance, service access and supportive sen/ices to individuals and families
who are experiencing homelessness.

The program facilitates the movement of homeless and chronically homeless individuals
and families to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency. Approximately sixteen (16)
households and twenty-two (22) individuals will be served from October 1. 2020 to August 31,
2021.

Using the Housing First model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis
Management plans, the vendor will facilitate the movement of each participant Into sustained
permanent housing while providing connections to community and mainstream services to
maximize each participant's ability to live more independently.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following reports and
information:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic Information, as well
as Income and expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  Data entry into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System,
which is the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing
programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language, Section 2.,
Renewal., of the original contract, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for two (2) months of the remaining one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer permanent
housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and families who
are vulnerable In unsafe and potentially deadly situations. Additionally, if data is not collected as
required by the contract, the Department will be in non-compliance with federal regulations, which
could result in a loss of federal funding for homeless and permanent housing supportive services.
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Area served; Merrimack County

Source of Funds: CFDA #14.267, FAIN #NH0060L1T001907

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #2 to the Continuum of Care,
FIT Concord Community PSH Contract

This 2"^ Amendment to the Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH contract, (formerly known
as the Continuum of Care, Concord Community Leasing II PH contract), (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH, Inc.. (hereinafter referred
to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market Street, Manchester,
NH, 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019 (Item #46), as amended on May 6. 2020 (Item #37), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Section 2., Renewal, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement
of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or'modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

August 31, 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$308,452.

3. Remove all references to "Concord Community Leasing II PH" and replace with "FIT Concord
Community PSH" throughout the Agreement.

4. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit A - Amendment #2,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read:

1.2.4. Grant Numbers

1.2.4.1. NH0060L1T001806(SFY 2020; July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2020)

1.2.4.2. NH0060L1T001907(SFY2021; July 1, 2020 - June 30. 2021)

1.2.4.3. NH0060L1T001907 (SFY 2022; July 1. 2021 - August 31, 2021)

6. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.7.. Subparagraph 1.2.7.1.,
to read:

1.2.7.1. Not to exceed $308,452.

•DS

i\*JD
FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

9/28/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02 Page 1 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH

7. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 1. Permanent
Supportive Housing Program, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for the Continuum of Care Program:

July 1, 2019 ■ July 1, 2020 - July 1, 2021 -
June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 August 31. 2021

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $15,956 $27,267 $4,544

1.2.8.2. Leasing: $80,780 $148,143 $24,690

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses: $2.310 $4.082 $680

1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount: $99,046 $179,492 $29,914

lU-P
FIT/NHNH, Inc. Amendment #2 Contractor Initials

9/28/2020
SS.2020.BHS-04.PERMA-10-A02 Page 2 of 4 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be effective October 1, 2020, upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. -

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

9/29/2020

Date

^DoeuSign«d by:

Name'^^*^^^*^^ santanlello
Title; Director

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

9/28/2020

Date

^DocuSigntd by:

N^;^^tWrrDevTTn
Title: president & CEO

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02

Amendment #2

Page 3 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, FIT Concord Community PSH

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

E)ocuS^«d by:

10/5/2020
—  * D6OA0i!Pi!C0e&**Ci., ^

Date Name:^^®^"®
Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

FIT/NHNH, Inc. ^ Amendment #2

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02 Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description Of the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful access to their programs
and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date; submitted to:

NH DHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The State, as
the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC, and/or, the recipient of the CoC funding,
has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence In the application process.
However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to
the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreement, the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b), US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector General,
and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives, must
have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records of the Contractor that
are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts.
These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period, but last as long as the
records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licensed to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific Information required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records. /—

Alp
FIT/NHNH. Inc. Exhibil A - Amendment #2 Contraclof Initials^

9/28/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PeRMA-10-A02 Page 1 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

1.10. The Contractor shall support the primary goal of this program which is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program, Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program comprised of sixteen (16)
housing units (households) and twenty-two (22) beds serving homeless individuals, youth, and/or
families in Merhmack County with leasing assistance and supportive services, which includes, but
is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are not imposed
beyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
intake and, at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shall establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used in accordance with 24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain sufficient
records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance, including:

2.3.1. -Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation related
to establishing and operating a CoC:

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance with 24 CFR 576.500(b).

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that

establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain

documentation of each program participant who moved to a different CoC due to imminent
threat of further domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51 (c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is not
limited to:

2.3.1.3.1 The original incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking,
only if the original violence is not already documented in the program participant's case
file. This may be written observation of the housing or service provider; a letter or other
documentation from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider,
pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim
has sought assistance; medical or dental records; court records or law enforcement
records; or written certification by the program participant to whom the violence
occurred or by the head of household.

2.3.1.3.2 The reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating^ violence,
or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-pm^^uch as a

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contfactof Initials^
9/28/2020

SS-2020-BHS-04.PERMA-10-A02 Page 2 of 5 Pale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be written
observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation from a
victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor,
mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has sought
assistance; current restraining order; recent court order or other court records: law
enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, including
emails, voicemails, text messages, and social media posts; or a written certification by
the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives housing assistance
where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the Contractor must
keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2.3.1.4.2. Source documents (e.g., most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
statement, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assets held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g., employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2.3.1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
written certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Prooram Participant Records. In addition to evidence of homelessness status or at-risk-of-

homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment of services for those program
participants that remain in the program for more than a year and adjusted the service
package accordingly, and including case management services as provided in 24 CFR
578.37(a)(1)(ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contractor must retain documentation of compliance with the
housing standards in 24 CFR 578.75(b), including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at' least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance with:

2.4.1. The Organizational conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).
/- OS

%2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.9

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment tt2 Contractor Initials^
9/28/2020

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02 Page 3 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 578.95fd).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest policy
that complies vvith the requirements in 24 CFR 578.95, including records supporting any exceptions
to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.87(b).

2.6.3. Affirmativelv Furtherino Fair Hbusino bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program in accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c).

2.6.4. Other Federal Requirements in 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and documentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 84.

2.7. Confidentialitv. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917), the Contractor shall develop and implement written procedures to
ensure:

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state and federal laws and regulations; ;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public, except
as provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and consistent
with State and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
^ microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of the
five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reporting Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports: ,

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report (APR): Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion Date,
an APR shall be submitted to BHS that summarizes the aggregate results of the Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project in the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and

3.1.2. Other Reoorts as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Exhibit A - Amendment #2 Contractor Initials^

kl)

9/28/2020
SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02 Page 4 of 5 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program, FIT Concord Community PSH

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BHS, including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible, BHS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five (5)
working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BHS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the HUD New Project
Application, #SF-424: and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to, those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578; Continuum of Care
Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall be accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

6.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHS, or designee, may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule. 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program as outlined in Section 2.2.
Exhibit A and as outlined in other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources; employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access and referrals; and

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3., Program
Reporting Requirements, Exhibit A.

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A02

Exhibit A - Amendment #2

Page 5 of 5

Contractor Initials

Date
9/28/2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Stole of the State of New. Hampshire, do hereby certify thatPIT/NHNH, INC is a New

Hampsbrre Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business In New Hampshire on May 13, 1994.1 further certify that all fees
and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have f)cen received and Is in good standing os for as this office Is

concerned.

Business ID: 207982

Certificate Number 0004885897

Uo

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand ond cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7lh day of April A,D. 2020.

w.

WUliam M. Gardner

Secrotaiy of Slate
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

Scott Ellison

(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)
hereby certify that;

1. I am a duly elected Officer of, FIT/NHNH. Inc.

(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 15 . 2020 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Maria Devlin. President

Is duly authorized on behalf of
with the State

(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

FIT/NHNH. Inc

(may list more than one person)

to enter into contracts or agreements

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts withJh^'STSfe'^^New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: September 15. 2020

Sighfature of Elected Officer
Name: Scott Ellison

Title: Board of Director, Chair

Rev. 03/24/20
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FAMIINT-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DBEAUDQIN

0AT6 (bWDDnrVYY)

9/3/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFRRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcylles) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the p^lcy, certain polklos may roqulro an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rlflhts to tho cortlflcato holder In lieu of such ondorsemontfs).

PRODUCER

Davis & Towie Morrlll & Everett Inc.
115 Airport Road
Concord, NH 03301

(603) 225-6611 wc.kov.(603) 225-7935

n aUR£R(8\ APFOROWO COVERAOE MAICf

iNsuRERA;PhlladelDhla Insurance Comoanv 23850

WSURED

Families In Transition, Inc.

122 Market St

Manchester, NH 03101

INHIIRPR R ■ et«t* Health Car* S Human Sarvleai SaM Inaurad Oroup

INSURSRC:

INSURER 0:

INSURER E :

INSURER F;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO TFC INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWnrHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDmON OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AU THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. UMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WSR
TYPC OF M8URANCE

ADDL8U0R
wvn POUCY NUMBER UMITS i

A X COMMERCIAL CENCRAL UABa.lTY

€ fxl OCCUR PHPK2077895 1/1/2020 1/1/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

1 CLAIUS-MAC gA^OETOpRENTeD ^ ,  1,000,000

MFD FXP lAnv one earsenl
,  20,000

"

PFRSONAl S AOV INJURY
,  1,000.000

! OENLAOaReaATEUMITAPPLIESPER; OFNFRAl AGORFOATF.
,  3,000,000

POLICY nn 515^ [xji-oc PROOUCTS - COUPlOP AGO
,  3,000,000

A

1

1 AUTOUOBILC UABIUTY 1
PHPK2077898 1/1/2020

1

1/1/2021

COMBINED SINOiE UMIT 1, 1,000,000

JL ANY AUTO BODILY WJURY IPer oerionl t

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

mONLY,

8C
AL
;heouled
IT08 BODILY auURY (Par anrMaml 1

NC
Al t

»

A;T UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS4MDE PHUB705694 1/1/2020 1/1/2021

FACHOCCURRFNCF
,  6.000,000

AOOREOATE s

1 DEO 1 X 1 RETEMTIONJ lO.OOOj ,  5,000,000

"b~ WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABBJTY y/M
ANY PROPRlBTOR/PARTICRCXECuriVE

IIVM. doscrtbs under
nP.mRJPTIONOP OPFRAnONS below

NIA

j

HCHS20200000187 2/1/2020 2/1/2021
1 BTATUTE 1 1 Er"*

F.I FACH ACCIOFNT
1  1,000,000

F..L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
,  1,000,000

F..I.. OISEASF . POLICY UMIT
,  1,000,000

DESCfUPTION OF OPCRATIONS1 LOCATIONS 1VCHICLCS (ACORO 101. AddlUontl Ramafk* ScMiSa. may ba attachad If mor* apae* Is mtjulrsd)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant St

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCtES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATT/B

ACORD 26 (2016/03) ® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rosorvod.

Tho ACORD namo and logo are registered marks of ACORO
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Families
in Transition

A Hiding Hooe.

_ '<0

£

FOR NEW HAMPSHIRE, IMC

SOUP RITCHEN • FOOD PANTRY • HOMELESS SHELTERS

Our Mission

The mission of FIT/NHNH is to provide hunger relief,
emergency shelter, safe affordable housing, and
supportive services to individuals and families who are
homeless or in need, enabling them to gain self-
sufficiency and respect.
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(With Comparative Totals for 2018)

With Independent Auditor's Report
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements, of FIT/NHNH, Inc. and
Subsldiaries.(the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
December 31, 2019 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the. audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2019, and the
consolidated changes in their net assets.and their consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Maine • Now Hainpshire • Maisachuselis • Conneclicut • WcstVkginia • .nrizona

befrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

FIT/NHNH, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2018 consolidated financial statements and, In our
report dated March 18, 2019, expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Marters

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the
consolidating statement of financial position as of December 31, 2019, and the related consolidating
statements of activities and functional expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the
individual entitles, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Changes in Accounting Principles

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2019 the Organization adopted new
accounting guidance, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash, and FASB ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifyihg the Scope of the
Accounting Guidance for Contributions Received and Cbntnbutions Made. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to these matters.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 31, 2020
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

2018

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,522,454 $ 1,598,033
Accounts receivable 67,501 52,211

• Grants and contributions receivable 589,218 786,343
Prepaid expenses 65,512 80,007
Due from related parties - 35,613
Other current assets 59.367 48.110

Total current assets 3,304,052 2,600,317

Replacement reserves 428,390 336,578
Reserve cash designated for properties 1,012,597 718,154
Investments 1,123,413 1,336,584
Investment in related entity 1,000 1,000
Asset held for sale - 429,779
Property and equipment, net 32,788,053 28,530,819
Devebpment in process 155,686 3.605.450
Other assets 80.638 198.473

Total assets $ 38.893.829 $ 37.757.154

LIABILIHES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt ■$, 317,739 $ 1,116,180
Accounts payable 167,557 249,907
Accrued expenses 372,038 348.095
Due to related entity - 35,613
Line of credit > 145,000
Other current liabilities 59.671 82.475

Total cument liabilities 917,005 1,977,270

Long-term debt, net of current portion and unamortized deferred costs 15.610.670 13.604.017

Total liabilities 16.527.675 15.581.287

Net assets
Wi^out donor restrictions - controlling interest 19,284,224 17.778.833
Without donor restrictions - noncontrolling interest 2.602.333 3.209.398

Total without donor restrictions 21,886,657 20,988,231

With donor restrictions 479.597 1.187.636

Total net assets 22.366.154 22.175.867

Total liabilities and net assets $ 38.893.829 $ 37.757.154

The accorhpanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals

WBlMul Denor Raavwiioftt
. Con1ro»na MarM
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FMdrtl. MM and eOitr pn<il wppoft 9  4496.362
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V19TA pregnm (avanua 78.388
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2019

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Program Activities

Management 2019 2018
Housina Thrift Store Fundralslna and General Total Total

arles and benefits

Salaries and wages $ 4,042,182 $  248,403 $  400,818 $  603,736 $ 6,295,139 $ 4,682,814
Employee benefits 430,575 11,728 41,883 62,042 546,228 517,504
Payroll taxes 299.750 19.882 30.036 44.292 393.960 353.589

Total salaries and

benefits 4,772,507 280,013 472,737 710,070 6,235,327 5,553,907

er expenses

Advertising 21,315 29,076 2,441 3,662 56,494 59,032
Application and permit fees 522 - 52 4,341 4,915 1,620
Bad debts 13,402 - - - 13,402 28,100
Bank charges 7,982 7,466 872 5,554 21,874 20,865
Condominium association fees 12,072 . . 12,072
Consultants 37,115 2,714 4,168 5,377 49,374 29,481
Depredation 1,024,398 10,304 131,224 73,404 1,239,330 1,111,930
Events 1,789 385 145,581 - 147,765 167,049
Food 124,060 - - 124,060 _

General insurance 146,654 2,331 15,214 11,245 176,444 155,880
Grant expanse - - - - - 59,149
Interest expense 218,845 660 1,615 538 221,669 229,713
Management fees 6,724 - - - 6,724 6,622
Meals and entertainment 3,498 - 466 783 4,747 6,122
Membership dues 6,728 - 757 1,136 8,621 15,989
Merger expenses 110,014 - - 38,672 146,886 137.747
Office supplies "176,001 8,895 21,594 32,098 238,688 370,155
Participant expenses 139,602 - - 139,602 117,718
Postage 12.557 8 1,493 2,182 16,240 13,365
Printing 35,759 982 4,311 6,309 47,361 40,717
Professiorial fees 158.731 4,000 12,014 37,895 212,640 169,823
Rental subsidies 332,635 - - - 332,635 332,270
Repairs and maintenance 576,606 26,813 73,992 43,911 721,321 482,762
Shelter expense - - - - . 166,891
Staff development 34,768 200 4,376 6,538 45,882 39,034
Taxes 365,503 1,709 - . 367,212 315,920
Technology support 169,707 525 20,752 30,914 221.898 244,811
Telephone 111,116 2,618 9,421 13,981 137,136 112,921
Travel 37,152 2,326 4,881 7,299 51,668 54,172
Utilities 534,278 22,308 60,222 26,851 643,669 613,495
VISTA program 208,887 - - - 208,887 320,859
Workers' compensation 123.512 14.630 12.205 17.952 168.299 148.356

Total expenses $ 9.524.438 S  417.963 S 1.000.388 S 1.078.712 $12.021.601 $11.106.475

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization
Grants and contributions for capital projects
Effect of consolidation of affiliate, net of cash held by consolidated affiliate

of $326,551
Forgiveness of debt
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable

Grants and contributions receivable

Prepaid expenses
Other assets

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayments from (advances to) related parties
Proceeds ̂ m sale of investments

Investment In development in process
Proceeds from disposal of assets
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants and contributions'for capita! projects
Net (repayments on) borrowings from line of credit
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payment of financing costs
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase in'cash and cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year

Breakdown of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents
Replacement reserves
Reserve cash designated for properties

Supplemental disclosure

Property and equipment transferred from development In process
Interest paid

S-

2019 2018

190,287 $ 3,149,914

1,253,461

(131,267)
(252,431)
(210,190)

(15,290)
197,126
14,496

106,578

(82.360)
23,943

(35,613)
(22.804)

1.036.944

1,125,127
(560.790)

(3,104,400)
(131,267)
168,848
10,115

42,130
(334,679)
(39,301)

(119,810)

(21,258)
84,806
35,613
32.971

338.019

36,613 (35,613)
465,602 275,024
(623,132) (1.515,419)
846,634 -

(1.730.333) (2.476.109)

(905.616) (3.752.1171

560,790
(146,000) 145,000
2,127,976 3.507.201
(31,409) -

(771.218) (223.019)

1.180.348 3.989.072 .

1,310,676 575,874

2.652.765 2.076.891

3.963.441 .$ 2.652.765

2,522,454 $ 1,598,033
428,390 336,578

1.012.597 718.154

3.963.441 $ 2.652.765

3.972.896 $ 2.222.138

221.658 $ 229.713

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Organization

In May 1994, Families in Transition, Inc. was incorporated as a New Hampshire nonprofit to provide
housing and comprehensive social services to individuals and families who are homeless or at risk of
becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire.

Effective January 1. 2018, Families in Transition, Inc. merged with New Horizons for New Hampshire.
Inc. (NHNH) to form FIT/NHNH, Inc. (FIT/NHNH or the Organization). As a result of the merger,
FIT/NHNH created an integrated system of care that provides an increased supply of affordable
housing for those most In need, sustains positive outcomes through the incorporation of evidence
based practices proven to meet identified needs and goals, identifies areas for systemic and
programmatic improvements through the use of consistent and accurate data to regularly measure
success, and provide an integrated system of care to prevent homelessness when possible and rapidly
rehouse those who tjecome homeless, including both the chronically homeless and families with
children. The merger resulted In a contribution of net assets in 2018 as follows;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 326,551
Other current assets 63,438
Cash surrender value of life insurance 33,676
Investments 1,780,456
Property and equipment, net 1,396,197
Accounts payable and accrued payroll (95,950)
Notes payable (73.4171

Fair value of net assets acquired $ 3.430.951

The fair value of the identifiable assets exceeded the fair value of the liabilities assumed; as a result, a
contribution was recognized. There was no consideration transferred from NHNH.

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street, Lake Avenue and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing
facilities are owned and operated by. several limited partnerships of which the Organization, or one of
its subsidiaries, is the sole general partner. These limited partnerships include Bicentennial Families
Concord Limited Partnership (Bicentennial), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord. New
Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in
Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on
South Beech Street in Manchester, New Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited
Partnerships).

During 2019, Bicentennial reached the end of its initial 15-year low-income housing tax credit
compliance period. Effective September 20. 2019, New Hampshire Housing Equity Fund 2002 Limited
Partnership and JPMorgan Chase, the limited partners, and Bicentennial Families Concord,. Inc., the
general partner, dissolved Bicentennial. As a result, the non-controlling interest was eliminated and the
assets and liabilities of Bicentennial were transferred to the general partner. The general partner's
parent. Fit/NHNH, then caused the assets to be contributed to, and the liabilities assumed by. Housing
Benefits, Inc. (Housing Benefits), a subsidiary of FIT/NHNH.

-7-
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019

(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

In 2008, the Organization created Housing Benefits, a Community Development Housing Organization,
to identify and develop new housing units and refurbish existing units to meet the persistent need of
combating homelessnessr Completed housing units are located on School & Third Street, Lowell
Street, Belmont Street, Market Street (Millyard I and Miliyard II), Spruce Street and Hayward Street, in
Manchester, New Hampshire as well as additional housing facilities located on Central Avenue in
Dover, New Hampshire (Dover), Lehner Street in Wolfeboro, New Hampshire (Hope House), and at
Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire (Bicentennial).

On April 12, 2019, HB-AH, LLC (HB-AH) was legally formed as a limited liability company organized
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire which is treated as a disregarded entity for federal
income tax purposes. HB-AH's purpose is to acquire, own, rent, operate and manage 23 residential
apartments located in Manchester, New Hampshire. HB-AH is to operate exclusively to further the
charitable purpose of Housing Benefits, HB-AH's sole member.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate shelter to homeless families In the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family Outfitters, LLC (Outfitters), a limited liability corporation.
At December 31, 2019, Outfitters operated an independent thrift store in Manchester, New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization. During 2018,
management made the decision to close a Concord, New Hampshire thrift store location.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness (NHCEH), a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for
homelessness through research, education and advocacy."

On May 25, 2018, the Organization organized Wilson Street Condominium Association (the
Association). The Association was established for the purpose of maintaining and preserving a five unit
premise located on Wilson Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. The Organization is the majority
owner of the Association.

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Second Street Family Mill, Inc.
(Family Mill), and Big Shady Tree, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as the General
Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned corporations represent
the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Family Mill is a general partner of
Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is a general partner of Family Willows.
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FIT/NHNH. INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Newlv Adopted Accounting Principle and Reclasslficatlons

In 2019, the Organization adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash. This ASU requires an entity to
present restricted cash with cash on the statement of cash flows. The impact of adoption on the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2018 is a decrease In cash
used by investing activities of $40,338, and an increase in cash and restricted cash, beginning of
the year of $1,014,394.

In July 2018, FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance
for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, to clarify and improve the accounting
guidance for contributions received and contributions made. The amendments in this ASU assist
entities in (1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions
(nonreciprocal transactions) within the scope of FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
Topic No. 958, Not-for-Profit Entities, or as exchange (reciprocal) transactions subject to other
accounting guidance, and (2) distinguishing between conditional contributions and unconditional
contributions. This ASU was adopted by the Organization for the year ended December 31, 2019.
Adoption of the ASU did not have a material impact on the Organization's financial reporting.

Principles of Consolidation

Since the General Partners have control of the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with FASB
ASC Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation, the financial statements of the Limited Partnerships are
required to be consolidated with the Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited
partners' ownership interest is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position as
noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, Housing Benefits, HB-AH, MEM, Outfitters, NHCEH, the Association, and the
General Partners. All significant inter-entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such Information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2018 consolidated financial statements, from which the summarized information
was derived.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared In accordance with
U.S. GAAP, which require the Organization to report Information regarding to its consolidated
financial position and activities according to the following net asset classification;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other, donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. Donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions. When a
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the consolidated statement of activities.

All contributions are considered to be available for general use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as support with donor restrictions that increases net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends
or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net
assets without donor restrictions and reported in the consolidated statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions w/hose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as support without donor restrictions in the year of
the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as support without donor
restrictions, unless a donor places explicit restriction on its use. Contributions of cash or other
assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as support with donor
restrictions and reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions when the assets are acquired
and placed in service.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid Investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash In bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally Insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential
risk at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it Is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Reserves are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for operating
costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for rental
properties as well as certain other social services and programs.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation, less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assets not in service are
not depreciated.

Rental Income

Rental revenue is recognized pro rata over each tenant's period of occupancy. A contract is
entered into with a teriant and covers a period of twelve months. All rents are collected at the
beginning of each month and are nonrefundable. A tenant has an option to cancel a lease at any
time with a minimum of 30 days notice, at which time the Organization will prorate the final rent
payment through a tenant's expected move-out date.

When a contract is entered Into v/ith a tenant, the Organization collects a security deposit. The
security deposits are maintained in a separate cash account and a corresponding liability Is
recognized. Upon termination of a tenanrs contract, the Organization assesses the condition of
the unit being vacated. If It is determined a unit Is vacated in a condition equivalent to when the
tenant occupied the unit, the security deposit Is refunded to the tenant. If a unit is determined to be
vacated in a condition less than equivalent to when the tenant occupied the unit, the security
deposit is retained and recognized as revenue.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Volunteer Services

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 is
approximately $1,030.000 and $780,000. respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to
more than one program or supporting function. Therefore, these expenses require allocation on a
reasonable basis that Is consistently applied. The expenses allocated include salaries and
benefits, depreciation, amortization, office and other expenses, which are allocated based on
direct payroll hours by functional cost centers.

Income Taxes

The Organization Is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1){A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected In these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report
any uncertain tax ppsitions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not
meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. The
Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to
examination by the federal government for up to three years.

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as partnerships, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

The Association is not exempt from income taxes; however, the Code categorizes any profits
realized by the Association from its member activities as reductions of members' contributions
towards the operation of the condominium property and not as taxable income of the Association
or its members. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made in these consolidated
financial statements.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

2. Availabllltv and Liquidity of Financial Assets

As of December 31, 2019, the Organization has working capital, excluding current assets with
donor restrictions of $454,597, of $1,932,450 and average days {based on normal expenditures)
cash and cash equivalents on hand of 85.

Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, scheduled principal payments on mortgage notes payable, and capital
acquisitions not funded through replacement resen/es or financed with debt,'were as follows:

2019 2018

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,522,454 $ 1,598,033
Accounts receivable 67,501 52,211
Grants and contributions receivable 589,218 786,343
Due from related parties - 35,613
Investments 1.123.413 1.336.584

Total financial assets 4,302,586 3,808,784

Donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted funds (479.5971 (1.187.6361

Financial assets available at year end for
current use $ 3.822.989 $ 2.621.148

The Organization also has a line of credit available to meet short-term needs, as described in Note
5.

The Organization has replacement reserves and designated cash reserves for properties as part
of its debt financing with New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA) which are only
available when approved by NHHFA. As a result, these replacement reserves and designated
cash reserves for properties are not considered available for general expenditure within the next
year and are not reflected in the amount above. The goal for the Organization is to maintain a
balanced budget while meeting the requirements of the various financing authorities.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

3. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Land $  3,764,378 $ 3,646,598
Land Improvements 650,360 602,600
Buildings and improvements 39,119.498 34,123,494
Fumiture and fixtures 920,936 731.590
Equipment 604,425 558,032
Vehicles 361,163 347,711

Construction in progress 850 12.229

45,421,600 40,022,254
Less: accumulated depreciation 12.633.547 11.491.435

Property and equipment, net $  32.788.053 $ 28.530.819

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Organization held $37,087,574 and $31,959,920,
respectively, of land, land Improvements, and buildings and Improvements for the purpose of
leasing to individuals. Accumulated depreciation on the land improvements, buildings and building
improvements at December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $9,284,428 and $8,344,904, respectively.

4. Development in Process

At December 31, 2019, development in process consisted of various projects in process related to
all of the properties owned by the Organization. As December 31. 2018, development in process
consisted of costs related to the following:

Familv Willows Recovery Housing Program

In response to the rising rates of opioid and other substance use issues throughout Manchester,
New Hampshire and the State of New Hampshire, FIT/NHNH and Housing Benefits established
The Manchester Recovery and Treatment Center (the Facility), a large-scale facility to curb the
tide of substance misuse.

The Facility provides areas for agencies to provide substance use disorder treatments or services
to those at varying stages of recovery. The Facility also includes Housing Benefit's Family Willows
Recovery Housing Program (the Program) on the 2^ and 3^^ floors. This Program provides 19
units of sober recovery housing, and accommodates approximately 40-50 women and their
children. Residents in the Program have access to case management, continued outpatient
treatment, self-help groups, employment workshops, and social events. Funding for the Facility
was secured from the City of Manchester, NHHFA, Franklin Savings Bank, the Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) and private ifoundations. Construction was completed and
the Facility was placed into service in 2019.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $350,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4% (4.75% at December 31, 2019). As of December 31, 2018, the outstanding
balance was $145,000. There was no outstanding balance as of December 31. 2019.

6. Lonq-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:
2019 2018

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680,
including Interest at 1% and an escrow of $289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in
full ln January 2033. $ 50,142 $ '53.707

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is noninterest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 163,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $883, including interest at 5.00% for five years. After five
years, the interest rate adjusts to match the then current
Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 5-year, 20-year amortizing
rate plus 2.50% The loan is collateralized by real estate on
Spruce Street, Manchester, New Hampshire and is due and
payable in full in May 2034. The Organization refinanced this
note in 2019. 104,019 113.185

A mortgage loan payable to TD Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359, including interest at 4.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payable in full in November 2023. 48,028 59,226

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of $2,126, including interest at 7.18%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024. 207,307 217,397
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A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property. Monthly payments of
$1,095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with tbe final installment due and
payable on May 1,2034. 135,156 141,664

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
Instruments. Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2034. This is
nonrecourse. 85,018 85,018

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Bicentennial property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable on May 28, 2033. This note is
nonrecourse and is subordinate to the $85,018 note payable. 336,955 336,955

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to
Merrimack County, collateralized by Bicentennial property and
various financing instruments. The note is due and payable in
full in May 2033. 260,000 260,000

A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Millyard II property and various financing
instruments. Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due.
The note is due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the
property or in May 2031. This loan is nonrecourse. 445,068 449,877

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA.
collateralized by Millyard II property. Monthly payments of
$1,729 include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The
final installment is due and payable on September 1, 2032. 207,057 220,274

A note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, collateralized by Millyard II property and various
financing instruments. A payment of interest shall be made
annually no later than August 1 each year based on 42.5% of
the net cash flow, as defined. In any year where the Debt
Coverage Ratio, as. defined, exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal
payments shall be made no later than August 1 in an amount
that will result in a 1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid
amounts are due and payable in full on August 1, -2031. This
note is nonrecourse. 226,725 226,725
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A noninterest bearing note payable by Housing Benefits to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by Millyard II property. Payment of principal is due and payable
on December 31, 2031. This note is nonrecourse. 250,000 250,000

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by Millyard Families I real estate. The note Is noninterest
bearing and is due and payable in January 2027. 230,000 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to CDFA,
collateralized by Millyard Families I real estate. Monthly
payments of $1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per
annum. The final Installment is due and payable on June 15,
2022. 32,773 45430

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and is .to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30,2034. 850,000 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TO Bank, N.A..
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
Include principal and interest at 4.33%. The note is payable in
full In November 27. 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH, Inc.
and Family Mill. 415,323 432,921

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester. New Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal Is due by October 1, 2034.
The note is collateralized by real estate and is nonrecourse. 600,000 600,000

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA.
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The note
bears no interest and Is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,

,  2037. 516,277 543,384

A note payable by Family Willows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is noninterest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029. The note is collateralized by
real estate and is nonrecourse. 81,817 90,908
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A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collaterallzed by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and Interest at 4.75%, based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note Is payable in full on June 27, 2033 and
Is guaranteed by FIT/NHNH. Inc. and Big Shady Tree. 251,100 263,103

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collaterallzed by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. Monthly payments of $2,775 include principal and
Interest at 8% per annum. The note Is due In February 2021. 40,664 69,285

A second mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHCLF,
collateralized by School & Third Street real estate and personal
property. The note bears no interest and monthly payments of
$2,775 will commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until
maturity in October 2039. 617,613 617,613

A mortgage note payable by Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collaterallzed by Belmont Street real estate and personal
property. The non-Interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note Is

.  payable in full by December 2040. 413,735 413,575

A privately-financed mortgage note collaterallzed by property
located at South Main Street In Concord, New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 Include principal and interest at
6.25% per annum. The property was sold and the note was
paid In 2019. . 332,432

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Lowell Street real estate and personal
property. The non-interest bearing note requires annual
payments in amounts equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is
payable In full in August 2040. 34,628 34,628

A second, noninterest bearing, mortgage note payable from
Housing Benefits to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire,
collaterallzed by Lowell Street real estate. Annual payments
equal to the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$4,000 commenced In October 2012 and continue until the

maturity date in June 2041. 160,022 168,022
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A noninterest bearing promissory note payable from Housing
Benefrts to NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security
agreement on Lowell Street real estate. The note is to be
forgiven 1/16th annually over the low-Income housing tax credit
compliance period which ends in 2026, subject to compliance
with certain requirements. During 2019 and 2018, $131,267
was recognized as revenue and-support in the consolidated
statement of activities. ' 853,230 984,497

A mortgage note payable from Housing Benefits to NHHFA,
collateralized by Dover real estate and personal property. The
noninterest bearing note requires annual payments In amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable In full by
June 2028. 216,148 216,672

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 393-395 Spruce Street. Annual
payments of the greater of 25% of net cash flow, as defined, or
$5,000 are due annually by October 1. The note is due in full by
October 1.2041 572,808 582,808

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property

•  located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments
of $2,137 Include principal and interest at 4.35%. The note is
due in full by April 2024. The Organization refinanced this note
in 2019. 386,216 388,731

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $488, including
interest at 4.06%. The loan Is due In September 2020 and Is
collateralized by the related vehicle. 4,237 9,892

A vehicle loan payable in monthly payments of $760, including
interest at 5.374%. The loan is due in November 2020 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 6,989 13,979

A vehicle loan payable In monthly payments of $308, Including
Interest at 4.75%. The loan is due in October 2023 and is

collateralized by the related vehicle. 12,930
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A mortgage note payable to NHHFA, collateralized by the real
estate at Lake Avenue, Manchester, New Hampshire. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments In amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note Is payable in full by
June 2045. 750,000 750.000

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 641 Hayward Street. Manchester, New
Hampshire. Monthly payments of $1,091 Include principal and
interest at 4.25%. The note is due in full by January 2040. 177,428 183.916

A mortgage note payable to Peoples United Bank, collateralized by
Hope House. Monthly payments of $2,270 include principal and
interest at 4.94%. The note is due in full by January 2027. 373,411 382,018

A construction loan payable to Franklin Savings Bank,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. Housing Benefits has the ability
to draw up to $825,000 on the promissory note. Monthly
payments including principal, interest and escrow of $7,003 are
due over a 30 year period starting September 2018 at 4.90%
interest. 724,146 770,113

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street.
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of
$720,000. Annual payments in amounts equal to 25% of
surplus cash. The note Is due in full by November 1, 2047. 720,000 692,891

Three vehicle loans collateralized by an activity bus payable to
Ford Credit in monthly payments of $392 at 5.90% annual
interest rate. The loan is due and payable in March 2022. 28,611 40,633

A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate located at 267 Wilson Street, 2nd Floor. The note
has a borrowing limit of $1,655,323. As costs are incurred
Housing Benefits Is to be reimbursed by the City of
Manchester. Annual payments of the greater of 25% of net
cash flow, as defined, or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1. 2019. The note is due in full by
October 1.2047. 1,468,182 1.133,816
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A noninterest bearing mortgage note payable to the City of
Manchester, coiiateralized by real estate located at 267 Wilson
Street, 3rd Floor. The note is funded by the City of
Manchester's Community Improvement Program and the City
of Manchester's Affordable Housing Trust Funds. The note has
a borrowing limit of $531,252. As costs are Incurred, Housing
Benefits is to be reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual
payments in the amount of 25% of net cash flow, as defined,
are due by October 1 commencing October 1, 2019. The note
is due In full by December 1, 2047. 531,252 495,225

A noninterest bearing construction loan payable to NHHFA,
coiiateralized by real estate located In Wolfeboro, New
Hampshire. The note has a borrowing limit of $780,000. Annual
payments In amounts equal to 25% of surplus cash. The note Is
due in full by December 1, 2047. 780,000 780,000

A mortgage note payable to NHHFA and Is coiiateralized by the
real estate and personal property. The mortgage Is Insured by
the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development
through the Housing Finance Agency Risk Sharing Program
authorized by Section 542(c) of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1992. Monthly payments of $6,745 are
due for principal and Interest at 4.20%. All remaining principal

.  Is due on May 1, 2059, 1,558,090

A technical assistance note payable to NHHFA to provide support
to the Organization for renovations at Angle's Shelter. If the
renovation project is approved, NHHFA Is expected to be the
lead lender on renovations. If the renovation project is not
approved NHHFA will forgive the borrowings. The noninterest
bearing note payable Is due at the time of closing on the
construction loan. 41,627 13,879

A noninterest bearing note payable to the City of Manchester
Community Improvement Program through the Affordable
Housing Trust Funds, coiiateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street. Annual payments of $6,000 are due by
October 1 commencing October 1, 2010. The note was paid off
In 2019. - 6,000
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

A note payable to CDFA, collateralized by real estate located at
199 Manchester Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. Principal
only payments are due for the first 18 months, at which time
monthly payments include principal and interest at 2.0% will be
required until December 2021. 28.924 46.767

15,986,939 14,760,449

Less current portion 317,739 1,116,180
Less unamortized deferred costs 57.530 40.252

S 15,610,670 $13,604,017

Surplus cash for the purposes of these disclosures is as defined in the respective loan
agreements.

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2020 $ 317,739
2021 245,311
2022 223,202
2023 544,247
2024 663,538
Thereafter 13.991.902

$15.985.939

Interest expense charged to operations, including amortization of deferred costs of $14,131, was
$221,658 and $229,713 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

7. Net Assets

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, net assets without donor restrictions are fully available to support
operations of the Organization.

Net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2019 2018

Investments to be maintained in

perpetuity, income is to support
general operations $ 25.000 $ 25,000

Funds maintained with donor restrictions

temporary in nature:
The Family Place - services 81,933 53,540
Scholarships 8,764 8,264
VISTA program - 48,118
Housing programs 37,500 -

Direct care for clients 88,784 95,410
Community Gardens - 10,333
Hope House 21,067 131,440
Family Willows Recovery Housing

Program - 264,238
NHNH merger 12,779 345.003
Substance use disorder services 119,760 170,677
NHNH programs 17,344 35.613
Passage of time 66.666 -

Total funds maintained with

donor restrictions temporary in
nature 454.597 1.162.636

Total net assets with donor •

restrictions $ 479.597 $  1.187.636
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:

2019 2018

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions:
Operating releases

The Family Place - services $ 2S,607 $
Scholarships - 3,500
VISTA program 48,116 57!325
Direct care for clients 71,083 84,324
Community Gardens 2,000 -
Hope House 107,175
NHNH merger 122,810 96,706
Substance use disorder services 374,438 45,324
NHNH programs 107

Capital project releases
Hope House
Family Willows Recovery

Housing Program
NHNH programs

752.336 292.925

- 216.016

264,238 143,796
35.616

299.854 359.812

;  1.052.190 R 652.737

8., Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered Into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.
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FIT/NHNH, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2019
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2018)

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $71,543 and $63,053 during the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

10. Noncontrollinq Interest

Noncontrolllng interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners In the Limited Partnerships as follows:

Limited Partner Property 2019 2018

New Hampshire Housing
Equity Fund. Inc. Bicentennial $ - $ 105,749

JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial - 213,791
BGCC, Inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Capital Corporate Family Bridge 766,943 970,818
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 1.835.370 1.919.020

$  2.602.333 $ 3.209.398

11. Uncertaintv

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, local, U.S., and world governments have encouraged self-
isolation to curtail the spread of the global pandemic, coronavims disease (COVID-19), by
mandating the temporary shut-down of business in many sectors and Imposing limitations on travel
and the size and duration of group meetings. Most sectors are experiencing disruption to business
operations and may feel further impacts related to delayed government reimbursement, volatility in
investment returns, and reduced philanthropic support. There is unprecedented uncertainty
surrounding the duration of the pandemic, its potential economic ramifications, and any
government actions to mitigate them. Accordingly, while management cannot quantify the financial
and other impacts to the Organization as of March 31, 2020, management believes that a material
impact on the Organization's consolidated financial position and results of future operations is
reasonably possible.

12. Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 31, 2020,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Families in Transition/New Horizons New Hampshire
Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Scott W. Ellison, Chair

COOK, LITTLE, ROSENBLATT & MANSON, PLLC, Partner
Board member since 2018

Roy Tllsley, Vice Chair

Bernstein Shur, Shareholder

Board member since 2018

Robert Bartley, Treasurer

President, CPA, CFP, Bartley Financial Advisor
Board member since 2018

Frank Sagllo, Asst. Treasurer

Howe, Riley & Howe, PLLC.

Board member since 2018

Kristi Scarpone, Secretary

First, Corporate and Foundation Relations

Board member since 2018

Dick Anagnost, At Large

President, Anagnost Companies
Board member since 2018

I

Heather Whitfleld, At Large
Vice President, Commercial Lending, People's United Bank

•Board member since 2018

David Cassldy, Past Co-Chair

Senior Vice President, Eastern Bank

Board member since 2018

Charia Bizlos Stevens, Past Co-ChaIr
Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group

McLane Middleton, Professional Association Esquire
,  Board member since 2018

Colleen Cone,
Sr. Director Employee Relations Greater Boston Area, Comcast

Board member since 2018

Alison Hutcheson

Merchants Fleet Management, Associate Director of Sales Administration
Board member since 2018

Rev. 2/18/2020 RS



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F8EF4F5-4A97-44A7-B8DB-006923EE4C83

AnnMarle French

Executive Director, NH Fiscal Policy Institute

Board member since 2018

Brian Hansen

Team Engineering, Project Manager

Board member since 2018

Brian Mikol

Spectrum Marketing, Co-Owner

Board member since 2018

Jack Olson

Retired

Board member since 2018

Kitten Steams

Realtor, Coldwell Banker Residential Brokerage
Board member since 2018

Mary Ann Aldrlch

Dartmouth Hitchcock, Sr. Advisor Community & Relations
Board member since 2018

Peter Telge

Owner, Stark Brewing Company

Board member since 2018

Roy Baltentlne

Executive Chairman, Ballentlne Partners, LLC

Board member since 2019

Sarah Jacobs

Manchester School District Coordinator

Board member since 2018

Sean Leighton

Captain - Investigative Division Commander, City of Manchester Police Department

Board member since 2019

Wayne McCormick, CFP

Steward Partners Managing Director Wealth Manager
Board member since 2018

Rev. Gayle Murphy

Minister At Large

Board member since 2020

Michael McCormick

Anthem- Chief of Staff & Sales Effectiveness Director,
Commercial Business Division, Manchester NH

Board member since 2020

Rev. 2/18/2020 RS
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Maria Devlin

Profi le

Tenured professional with extensive experience leading teams through building strategies and initiatives to drive high performance.
Adept at developing and carrying out a strategic vision, particularly those that require buy-in from Internal and external stakeholders.
Expertise includes fundralsing, change management, organizational leadership, budget management and improving team engagement.

Ski l ls/Expertise

Experienced with Organizational

Budgeting including Revenue &

Expense Accountability

Organizational Agility & Complexity
Management

Teamwork and Team Building Skills

External Relationships & Partnerships
Customer Service Oriented

Face of the organization
Mission Focused

Goal Oriented, Leads by Example,
Visionary and Focused

Program/Project Management Experience

President & CEO

ramilies In Transition - New Horizons, Manchester NH nr)/;j020 - present

The President serves as Chief Executive Officer of Families In Transition-New Horizons and will have overall strategic and operating
responsibility for staff, planning, development, management and successful implementation of programs and services, community
engagement and execution of strategic objectives and mission of the organization.

•  Establishing a vision for community impact that is a'chieved through the efforts of a diverse team of high-performing leaders,
•  Responsible for overseeing the administration of programs to Include financial performance and viability, organization

mission and strategy, organizational operations, resource development and community impact.

Chief Executive Officer

American Red Cross of NH & VT, Concord, NH 03/2008-05/2020

Responsible for representing the American Red Cross in the community. Focus externally on core mission delivery, fundralsing
and being the face of the Red Crossfor the media, donors and their communities. Responsible for oversight and execution of a $5 million
operating budget.

Created overall strategic planning and oversight for 3 major transitions in Northern New England. Oversight of execution of
staff and board integration.
Lead organizational goals for service delivery, fundralsing and external relations - for the past A years have met or exceeded
key performance indicators and revenue target of $1.2 ~ 2.5 million annually
Lead dual-state (NH/VT) operations with a team of 24 PTEs plus 1100 volunteers at multiple locations - in August 2019,
began merger with Red Cross of Maine to align staffing, processes, procedures for a new 3-state region
Build lasting community partnerships with local corporations & groups to ensure mission delivery such as - installing over
12,000 free smoke alarms in homes across the two states in 5 years

Ensure that volunteers, youth and young adults are engaged and retained - 93S of our volunteer workforce Is engaged in
providing at least one hour of volunteer time to mission within the last fiscal year

Interim Executive Director

Director of Public Affairs

Children's Alliance of New Hampshire, Concord, NH 01/2007-03/2008

The Children's Alliance (now New Futures Kids Count) advocates, educates and collaborates to improve the health and wellness
of NH's residents. Collaborated with Board of Directors on organizational budget, development goals, policy initiatives and
organizational values and mission. Responsible for all operations: MR, P&L, Board Development, public policy advocacy initiatives
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Maria Devl in

•  Organized the Children's Advocacy Network - a diverse group of organizations and individuals - dedicated to improving the
life of children and families through legislative and public policy lr>itlatives, such as statewide kindergarten, statewide
children's health Insurance, greater access to Children in Need of Services (CHINS) and maintaining access to Supplemental
Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) benefits

•  Acting as the interim Executive Director supported by 3 paid staff and a board of directors with 12 members

•  Stabilized fundraising, operations and personnel to ensure positive transition to new leadership
•  in partnership with the Annie E. Casey Foundation, created & released the 2007 Kids Count data book for New Hampshire

an annual report which tracks child wellbeing. Data which is used to enrich local and state-level discussions around policy
change.

Director of Annual Giving
Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH 10/2003-01/2007

Responsible for increasing annual giving from SNHU alumni, family and friends through personalized outreach,
donor relationship building, and targeted fundraising events.

•  Successful $50,000 asks to build stronger scholarship program for students at university, developed moves management
plans for donors to increase donor engagement and support

•  Managed annual giving program including direct mail, Telefund (connecting with alumni through current students to raise
funds via phone calling) leadership and dass giving, faculty/staff giving, class gift and related events

•  Coordinated ail stewardship activities for University President and VP, Development with average gifts over $15,000
•  Managed stewardship for all scholarship donors with average gift of over $1,000

Director of Development & Program Services

Make-A-Wlsh Foundation of New Hampshire, Manchester, NH 05/1996-10/2003

•  Successfully developed, implemented and executed a new volunteer management program to grow active volunteer base
from 100 to over 500 volunteers throughout the state

•  Managed & grew special events fundraising from 15 events annually to over 160 events grossing over $1 million annually
•  Managed communications and public relations - created newsletters, managed website, pitched wish stories to media -

Increasing the number of families reached to grant over 250 wishes each year.

Education

Southern New Hampshire University, Manchester, NH Springfield College, Manchester, NH (satellite)
Master of Science, Organizational Leadership Master of Science in Human Services, Community Psychology

University of Maine, Orono, ME

Bachelor of Science. Child Development & Family Relations

Additional Certifications and Development
•  Certified Personal Trainer, National Academy of Sports Medicine, 2019

•  Adult First Aid/CPR/AED-2-year Certification, American Red Cross, 2018

•  Leadership of Non-ProfIt Organizations, Graduate Certificate, Southern New Hampshire University, 2008

HonorsSt Achievements

•  2015 Community Service Award Winner, Turkish Cultural Center of NH

•  2014 Excellence in Non-Profit Award Redpient from NH Business Review
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Maria Devl in

•  2013 Business Leaderof the Year Pinnacle Award Winner, Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce

•  2013 Presenter at the International Disaster Management Exhibition in Istanbul, Turkey

•  2013 Recognized as one of the Top Women-Led Non-Profits by Business NH Magazine

Community
Women's Resource Group founding member, American Red Cross 3/19-present

Governor's Council on Diversity and inclusion, 3/19-present

Waypoint NH (formerly known as Child & Family Servicies of NH) Trustee, 1/2015-present
Volunteer New Hampshire, Board Member 2014-2016

NH Volunteer Organizations Active in Disaster (NH VOAD), Board Member 2014-2016
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Meghan E. Shea, LICSW, MLADC

OBJECTIVE

Continue to utilize and expand the clinical and management skills have T attained from my
professional and academic training to secure a position in a nonprofit setting.

EDUCATION / LICENSURE
Master — Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor September 2010- Present

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker October 22, 2012-Present

Master of Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2010
■  Graduated with an MSW from the Advanced Standing Program

Bachelor of Art, Social Work, University of New Hampshire May 2006
■  Graduated with an BSW with GPA of 3.41

EMPlrQYMENT ^ '
Vice President, Clinical & Supportive Services
Families in Transition-New Horizons December 20*'', 2017 — present

■  Receivership-Interim Exeatdvc Director of Serenity Place
■  Oversees all clinical and supportive services at Families in Transition-New Horizons including

emergency shelter, transitional and permanent supportive housing, Intensive Outpatient Services,
Outpatient services, Recovery Housing and programmic^.

■  Quality of control of healthcare facilities Ucensure.
■  Oversight of fidelity of evidence based practices and models.
•  Oversight of staff competencies and required trainings for best practices across the agency.
•  Supervision of agency program managers and housing director.
■  Provide clinical supervisor for licensurc and certifications.
■  Quality control of all billing policies and procedures.

Clinical Director

Families in Transition Sept 1", 2016- December 2017
■  Oversee and manage Sr. Mousing Program Manager who supervises the supportive services department with up

to 25 staff providing housing (emergency, transitional and permanent) and supportive services with capacity to
serve 200 homeless individual and fiunilics. Supportive services encompass individual case management,
therapy, psycho-cducational workshops, pro-social family activities and crisis intervention.

■  Oversee the Family Willows Program Manager who supervises 11 clinical staff who conduct co-occurdng
treatment to women only

■  Develop and staff Recovery Housing program and implementation of newest housing and supportive service
programming

■  Develop and ovcrs^ht Open Doors outpatient programming for all transitional housing programs of RT
■  Ensure quality programming across Families in Transitions clinical department
■  Provide training within the organization and community on substsmcc misuse in NH.
■  Administer all program policies and procedure for Families In Transition's various Supportive Service
■  Oversight of billing components of all levels of Co-occurring treatment

Therapist January 2014- Present
Bedford Family Therapy

■  Treat a caseload of 15 clients in a private outpatient group practice
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■  Utilize various evidence based pmcdces CBT.DBT, and Seeking Safety skills to help clients meet their own
individual goals

■  Conduct Drug and Alcohol assessments
•  Active parricipant in DWl Offender Program providing mandated outpatient session for individuals, coming

from the Impaired Drivers Program
•  Participate in weekly supervision with other licensed clinicians pact of the private group practice.

Clinical 8c Supportive Service Manager March T''', 2016- August 31",2016
Families In Transition

■  Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
•  Manage the day to day operations for the Housii^ program of Families in Transition consisdng of over 200

apartment units in New Hampshire.
■  Provide clinical and administradvc supervision for a total of 14 staff for Families In Transition
■  Ensure compliance with budgetary and financial goals.
■  Maintain compliance with State, Federal, Accreditation, Contract and Insurance regulations.
■  Administer all program policies and procedure foe Pamiiies In Transition's various Ciinical Programs.

Program Maaager of the Family Willow Substance Use Treatment Program ' September 2014-2016
Families In Transition

■  Manage the day to day operations for the Family Willows Substance Use Program including six staff members
■  Transitioned the program from grant funded to billing all commercial insurances
■  Increased accessibility of treatment from 86 clients in 2013 to 250 in 2016.

•  ■ Provided clinical and administrative oversight of the FW Substance Use Treatment Program
■  Carried a caseload of 12-15 individual clients providing co-occurring evidence base therapeutic interventions.
■  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient treatment in a group setting on a weekly basis to group of 12 women.
■  Provided training and education to staff on clinical intervention and best practices in the group setting.

Therapist May 2010- September 2014
Families In Transition

■  Facilitated Intensive Outpatient Programing in a group setting daOy for up to 12 clients
■  Carried a caseload of up to 15 people for individual therapy.
■  Provided crisis services for the hotline of Families In Transition

■  Conducted Substance Use Disorder Assessments for incoming clients
■  Produced treatment plans, progress notes and supporting documentation in a timely manner
■  Helped implement new curriculum changes in the treatment programming

MSW Intern May 2009 to May 2010
Bedford CoimscUog — Mental Healtli Center of Greater Manchester

■  Conducted intake interviews for new, adult clients and develop comprehensive psycho-social assessments to
include diagnosis and substance use assessments

■  Provided psychotherapcutic intervention services to twenty-two individuals using brief treatment and cognitive
behavioral interventions

■  Attended therapeutic workshops pertaining to dual-diagnosis, behavioral health and client driven treatment
planning

Case Manager June 2006- May 2010
Families In Transition

■  Provided in home case management services to 30 individuals and families to enhance housing stability among
die homeless population.
Provided crisis hotline coverage for all clinical programming of Families In Transition
Conducted program interviews for the commutiity support program
Maintained all files with updated documentation, clear and concise progress notes and treatment plans
Facilitated workshops to help enhance overall wellness to participants of the program
Collaborated with community partners to increase referral resources

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
Providers Association Board of DircctOfS-Vicc President of Treatment J^ly 2014 to Present
NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association January 2012 to Present
Member of the Manchester Substance Use Collaborative March 2012 to Present

PRRSENTATfONS

NH Association for infant mental health workshop Helping Parents Be Parents:
Addressing Substance Use and Trauma in a Family System- Loon Mountain June 2015



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F8EF4F5-4A97-44A7-B8DB-006923EE4C83

Providers Association: Addressing Substnnce Misuse in the Home Environment March 31 ",2016 at
Wentworth Douglas Hospital in Dover, NH

REFERENCES - AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST
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Kristen McGuigan, LICSW

EducaMon

Boston UmvfRsrrr/rvNCSBOJio, MA September 2006-May 2009
Masters of Social Work
RtVWR COUBGB. NASHUA, NH SEPTEMBER 2004.MAY 2006
Bachelor of Arts In Human Development
•  Minor in Social Work

New Hampsuirb Tbcmnical Instituts, Concord, NH Ssptemokr 2002- Mat 2004
Associates Degree in Eaiiy Childhood Education
Licenses

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker in Massachusetts and New Hampshire
Experience
PAMiuns IN Transition, Manchestbo, NH
Child and Family Program Manager October 2016-Priisbnt
•  Provide individual therapy to chlldren/adolescense and in-home family counseling
•  Supporting families whom struggle substance use, trauma and homelessncss
•  Fadlltiate therapeutic play groups and parenting groups

Program Manager/Child and Family Therapist OcroBER2009-0<rroBBR2012
•  Provide trauma-informed ftorapeiltic services to homeless children and families
•  Manage the trauma-Informed therapeutic preschool and altorschool program
•  Provide supervision to clinical staff and early educators whose respoasihlHly levels vary
•  Complete psychosoclal assessments, develop treatment plans, and DBCA/BERS assessmenttools
•  Provide individual therapy, family Ihempy, parenting workshops, staff trainings, group therapy and crisis intervention

PSTCnOTIISRAPY ASSOOATBS OP NORTH READING, NoRTCI READING, MA |ULV 2013- PRESRNT
Licensed Independent Clinical Soda! Worker
•  Provldo individual and family counseling to children, adolescences, and adults
•  Provide service to adolescences during the tranlsltion into college and adulthood
•  Offer art and play ther^y services to children ages 3-15 ycars'old
»  Conduct psychotherapy assessments and formulate treatmont plans

BliisMemoriai, Boston, MA Octobbb2Q12-May2014
Clinical Supervisor
•  Oversee clinical services for children being offered In the agency, Including supervision to clinical staff and interns
•  Provide therapeutic services to children and families enrolled in BUls's educational programming
». Enroll and oversee services for children that have open cases with the Department of Children and Families
•  Offer In-house trainings and on-going support to earty childhood providers
•  Create and implement behavior management strategies to ensure success for children within the programs

Moore Center Servkxs Inc., Manchester, NH November 2008-October 2009
Case Manager, Children Services
•  Assist families with children diagnased with developmental disabUities and participate In crisis Intervention planning
•  Oversee and manage child budget to provjdo services through the In Home Support program
•  Attend children's Individual education plan (IBP) meetings and collaborate with school systems on behalfof children's

education

Easter Seals lUBiDENTtAL PAaurv Co-Occurring Unit, Manchesteo, NH September 2008- May 2009
Master Level CHnlcal Intern

•  Participate In individual and group thera|^ with adolescents with substance abuse diagnoses
I * Develop curriculum for group therapy
•  Involvoment with drug couniuul the Now Hampshire court system
•  Participated In training for Therapeutic Crisis Intervention

Hicb Plain Biementary, Anuover, MA Sbptemdbr2007 -May 2008
Master Level Clinical Intern

•  Led Individual, group, and family therapy sessions employing a variety of techniques
•  PiovlJed emotional and behavioral support to clients with autism, ADHD, OCD, PDD-NOS, GAS and dcprossion
•  Seived as liaison between staff and families on mental health Issues and child development

Trninlngg
•  Certiiled trainer in Suicide Prevention through NAMI (National Association of Mental Illness) 2010
•  Certified trainer of Dr. Brazelton Touchpolnts child development model (Harvard University) 2011
•  Certified Disaster Case Manager Supeivlsor (Catholic Clmritlcs] March20l4
»  Faculty member participating on a team with mental health professionals, to help Implement die Trauma-Informed

Early Education and Core Systems Breakthrough Collaborative. Created and Implemented traimm-informed curriculum
training to early childhood educators. (Boston Public Health Commission, Boston MA) August2013-Sbptrmb8r2014
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Ann-Elise Bryant

Objccdve
Seeking a position as Housing Advocate

Educatioii

Gordon College Wenham, MA
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology and Sociology GPA 3.57 May'2010
Hbnors: hmingUm Scholar, jor academieptiformanee in, md iapaei on, ih$ PjjwAvijgy d^iorimmt and carpus; otu student

jhm each dpartment chosen; Dean 'x List;graduate aim laude

Experience
Supportive Services Case Manager
Somerville Homeless Coalition, Somecville, MA Match 2014- Present
• Responsible for an active case load of 12-18 individuals and families who fbtmeriy experienced

homelessness and now are in cecovery ftom substance abuse addiction and/or mental healdi
diagnoses

•  Provide setvices in the home and community as outiiaed on an Individual Service Plan (ISP) in
conjunction with supports K> promote retention of'petmanenthousing sobriety, and symptom
management v

•  Respond to crisis situatiom (including relapse) and utilize Harm Reduction tactics to promote client
safety

•  Produce documentation of all client interactions and maintain up-to-date ISPs and assessments
« Attend and participate in team meeting and assist in streamlining dient services through die

development and updating of protocols and policies, as well as providing training for new case
managers ihrou^ shadowing opportunities

Supported Employment Specialist
Genesis Behavioral Health. laconia, KB January 2013- February 2014
•  Supported ̂  active case load of 25t30 individuals widi' Severe and Persistent Mental Illness (SPMI)

primarily with employment search and school relate activities in the coranoant^ using an
Individualized Service Plan (ISP) to provide optimal treatment within a team approach

• Documented all interactions widi clients to mabtain continuity of care within and, ifnecessary,
outside of agency

•  Provided emergency services such as Crisis Intervention, support to local hospital emergency rooms,
and/or contact of local autfiorities when necessary

•  Facilitated more effective, streamlined processes for working in conjunction with local agencies, as
well as wthin the Supported Employment team in the areas of service provision to clients and new
hire training

Research Data Coordinator

Institute for Community Inclusion, Boston, MA November 2010- December 2011
•  Conducted research related activities (e.g. interviews, transcribing, literature reviews) on two projects

focused on aiding individuals witli disabilities
• Worked as a member of a research team and attended, and sometimes led, team meetings

/

^ferences availabk upon request
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Ann-Elise Bryant

References

1. Michael (Mike) jUbby, LCSW
-Wotk: 617-623-6111 (ask for Mike Libby)
-Deputy Director, direct Supervisor, Somerville Homeless Coalitioa
-Office phone between the hours of 9-5

2. Mark Lane

-Work: 617-623-6111 (ask for Mark Lane)
-Supportive Services Senior Case Manager, Somerville Homeless CoaUnon
-Office phone between the hours of 9-5

. 3. Dominique Whiton
-Former co-worker/personal fdend of 2 years
-Cellphoae; 603-254-2366
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FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Key Personnel for Concord Community PSH

—

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract
Maria Devlin President 185,000 0% _

Meghan Shea Chief Program Officer 105,000 0% .

Krlsten McGuigan VP of Clinical Services 81,000 3% 2,430
Ann-EIise Bryant Director of Housing Services 60,000 7% 4,200
TBD Manager of Housing Services 55,000 10% 5,500
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Lori A.Shlbineite

Commiisioner

Christine L. Stntanielio

Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES .

DIVISION OF ECONOMIC & HOUSING STABILITY

^  129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9474 1-M0-S52-3345 Ext. 9474

Fax:603-271-4230 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

April 22. 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Economic and
Housing Stability, to amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed below to
provide Permanent Housing and Coordinated Entry Programs and Supportive Services to
individuals and families who are experiencing homelessness through the Federal Continuum of
Care Program, by exercising contract renewal options by increasing the total price limitation by
$1,657,969 from $1,606,764 to $3,264,733 and by extending the completion dates from June 30.
2020 to June 30, 2021 effective July 1, 2020 or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever
is later. The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council on June 19. 2019, item
#46.100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)

Revised

Amount

Community
Action

Partnership
Strafford

County,
Dover, NH

177200-

B004
Statewide $38,524 $38,524 $77,048

Community
' Action
Program
Belknap-
Merrimack

Counties, Inc.,
Concord, NH

177203-

8003
Statewide $86,722 $86,722 $173,444

FIT/NHNH,

Inc.,

Manchester,

NH

157730-

B001
Concord $99,046 $101,469 $200,515

FIT/NHNH,

Inc.,

Manchester,

NH

157730-

B001
Concord $68,585 $68,585 $137,170

The Depanmcnl of Health and Human Services' Mission is to Join communilics and families
in providing opporLunilics for citizens to achieve health and indeixndencc.
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

The Lakes

Region Mental
Health Center.

Inc..

Laconia. NH

154480-

8001
Laconia $99,835 $102,211 $202,046

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.,

Keene, NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$85,230 $87,728 $172,958

Southwestern

Community

Services. Inc..

Keene. NH

177511-

R001
Statewide $86,552 $86,552 $173,104

Southwestern

Community
Services. Inc.,

Keene. NH

177511-

R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

Counties

$281,824 $288,544 $570,368

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Derry. NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$267,435 $273,459 $540,894

The Mental

Health Center

for Southern

New

Hampshire
Derry, NH

174116-

R001

Western

Rockingham
County

$273,230 $303,674 $576,904

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc..
Berlin. NH

177195-

B009
Statewide $130,822 $130,822 $261,644

Tri-County
Community

Action

Program Inc.,
Berlin. NH

177195-

B009

Grafton, ,
Coos, and

Carroll

Counties

$88,959 $89,679 $178,638

Total: $1.606J64 $1,657,969 $3,264,733



OocuSign Envelope ID: 6F8EF4F5-4A97-44A7-B8DB-006923EE4C83

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 3 of 4

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021. with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation through the Budget Office, if needed and
justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING-
SHELTER PROGRAM

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $1,606,764 $0 $1,606,764

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
TBD $0 $1,657,696 $1,657,696

Total $1,606,764 $1,657,969 $3,264,733

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because federal regulations require the Department to
specify each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care Program renewal
application process, prior to the grant award being issued. Annually, the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) oversees a Continuum of Care Prograni competitive
application process. As part of this process, the Department is required to provide HUD with each
potential vendor and HUD evaluates vendor applications. Based on that evaluation process. HUD
directs the Department to provide grant awards and the specific amounts to vendors. As
previously stated, the original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 19, 2019,
Item #46.

The purpose of this request is to continue providing Permanent Housing and Coordinated
Entry Programs that deliver rental and leasing assistance, access to supportive services and other
services to individuals who are experiencing homelessness.

Approximately 3.000 individuals will be served from July 1, 2020 to July 1, 2021.

Vendors facilitate movement of participants into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services in order to maximize participants'
abilities to live more independently. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
established the Continuum of Care concept to support communities in their efforts to address the
problems of housing and homelessness in a coordinated, comprehensive and strategic manner.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures:

•  Annual reviews relating to compliance with administrative rules and contractual
agreements.

•  Semi-annual statistical reports, including various demographic information and
income and.expense reports, to include match dollars.

•  All vendors funded through these contracts will report through the timely and
accurate entry of data into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Hor>orable Council.
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System, unless the vendor is required by law to use an alternate means of data
collection. This will be the primary reporting tool for outcomes and activities of
shelter and housing programs.

As referenced in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language. Section 2.,
Renewal, of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for one (1) of the two (2) years available,

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, there will be fewer
permanent housing options and homeless outreach services available, leaving individuals and
families that are vulnerable in unsafe and deadly situations without a safety net. Additionally, If
data is not collected as required by these contracts, the Department will be in non-compliance
with federal regulations, which could result in a loss of federal funding for these and other types
of homeless and permanent supportive services.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA# 14.267/FAIN# NH0014L1T001912, NH0057L1T001910.
NH0060L1T001907, NH0096L1T001904

Respectfully submitted

Lori A. Shiblnette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Concord Community Leasing II PH

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Continuum of Care, Concord Community Leasing H PH

This 1" Amendment to the Continuum of Care. Concord Community Leasing II PH contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and FIT/NHNH, Inc.,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor'), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 122 Market
St. Manchester. NH. 03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #46), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified In the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 18. and Exhibit C-1. Revisions to
Standard Contract Language. Section 2.. Renewal., the Contract may be amended and extended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govembr and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend,the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read;

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions. Block 1.8. Price Limitation, to read:

$200,515

3. Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.4., to read;

1.2.4. Grant Numbers:

1.2.4.1. NH0060L1T001806 (Grant Year 1)

1.2.4.2. NH0060L1T001907 (Grant Year 2)

4. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program Funding, Subsection 1.2.. Paragraph 1.2.7., Subparagraph 1.2.7.1., to read:

1.2.7.1 Not to exceed $200,515

5. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment. Section 1. Permanent Supportive
Housing Program, Subsection 1.2., Paragraph 1.2.8., to read:

1.2.8. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

Grant Year 1 Grant Year 2

1.2.8.1. Case Management (Supportive Services) $15,956 $15,956
1.2.8.2. Leasing $80,780 $83,203

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses $2.310 S2.310
1.2.8.4. Total Program Amount $99,046 $101,469

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $4,567 $4,567

FIT/NHNH. Inc. Amendment //1 Contractor Initials

SS-2020-BHS-04-PERMA-10-A01 Page 1 of 3 Dele
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care, Concord Community Leasing IIPH,

All terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain In full force and
effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands es of the dale written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date ^ » Name: CY\r\\ n®- I—• S arvVxOK
0^5

r^arch 30, 2020

Date

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

ams: Cat hn
Ttle:

Co- Executive Leaders

FIT/NHNH. Inc.

SS-202O^HS-O4-PERMA.10-A01

Amendmont its

Pego 2 of 3
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Jeffrey A. Meycn
Commlssieocr

Cbrltlloe L SsbudIcIIo
Director

JUNOS'ISpti 2:27 OAS

' ' " ^STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DimiON OF ECONOMIC S HOUSING STABILITY

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271.9474 l-S0<^52'334S Ext9474

'•Fax:.603-27M130 TDD Access: I.S0D-735.29W www.dhhi.nh.8ov

May 28. 2019 .

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu . '
and the Honorable Council

State House , .
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

/

Authorize the Department of Health'and Human Services, Division of Economic and Housing
Stability, to enter into sole source agreements with the vendors below to provide Permanent Housing
"arid Coordinated Entry Programs and Supportive Services to horrieless individuals and faniilies through
the Federal Continuum of Care Program iri an amount not to.exceed $1,606,764, effective July ), 2019,

■ upon Goverrior arid Executive Council .approval. through-June 30. 2020.'100% Federal.Funds.

Vendor ̂Name Project Nanie Vendor# , Location
SFY2020

Artipuht

Community Action .
Partnership Strafford County

Coordinated Entry "177200-6004 Statewide $38,524 .

Cbrrinriuhily Action Program
Belknap^Merrimack Counties.,
Inc.

Coordinated Entry .177203-6003 Statewide. $66,722

FIT/NHNH, Inc.

Cd'ricdrd Community
[.easing ll Permanent
Housing

157730-8001. . Concord $99,046

FIT/NHNH, Inc.
Concord. Permanent

Housing
157730-B001 Concord $68,585

the Lakes Region ft^ental
Health Center; Itic. ,

McGratti Street.

Permanent Housing
1.54480-B001 Laconia $99^835

Southwestern" Community

Services, Inc.

Permanent Housing.
Cheshire County 177511-R001

Cheshire &

Sullivan

.Counties

$85,230

Southwestern Commuriity
Servicesi Inc.

Coordinated Entry 17751i;Rapi ■ Statevyide. $86,552

Southwestern Cbrhmunity
Services, Itic.

Shelter Pius Care .

Permanent Housing
177511-R001

Cheshit;e&
Sullivan'

Counties

$281,824;;

The Mental Health Center for

Southern.New Hampshire
dba OLM Center fpr^ Life
Management.

Family Housing !
Perrh'anent Housing ■

.174116-R001

.Western

Rockingham
County

$267,435
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sunuriu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 4

Vendor Name ProjectName Vendor# . Location
SPY 2020

Amount

The Mental Health Center for
Southern New Hampshire
dba CLM Center for Life
Management

Permanent Housing 1 174116-R001

Western .

Rockingham
County

$273,230

TfvCounty Community Action
Program. Inc.

Coordinated Entry 177195-B009 Statewide . $130,622

Tri-County Community Action
Program. Inc.

Permanent Supportive
Housing 1. Expansion

177195-B009

Graftori,

Coos; and
.Carroll

Counties

$88,959

"

Tout: .. $1,606,764

Funds are available in the follovflng account for State Fiscal Year 2020. upon the availability arid
continued appropriation of funds in;the future operating budgets, with authprity to adjust arnount^ithin
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal.Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified.

05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND.SOCIAL SERyiCES. DERI OF HEALTH AND.HUMAN SVCS,

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Nurriber Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services TBD $1,606,764.

Total .$1,608,764;

EXPLANATION

These requests are sole source because federal regulations require the Department to specify
each vendor's name during the annual, federal Continuum of Care -Program renewal application process
prior to the grant award being issued.; The U.S. Oepaflrrient of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
reviews the applications and subsequently awards fundirig based on its criteria. The application prpcess
' and timing of grant teirns do not align with state or federal fiscal years. The start date of a grant is ba.sed
on the month in which each grant's original federal agreement was issued; This resutts in Coritlnuum of
Care Program grant start dates; and subsequent renewal approval requests, occurring in vanous months

..throughout the year. ■

The attached agreements "represent twelve (12) of hventy-nine (29) total agreements, many..of
which have reneWal'dates dispersed throughout the . calendar year, with vendors who are located
throughout the state to.ensure ongping, statewide-delivery of housing services through New Hampshire s
Continuum of Care Prdgrarn.

■ The purpose of these requests is for the provision of Permanent Housing and Coordtnale.d Entry
Programs that shall"deliver rental/leasing assistance, service apcess, supportive services and asso.cialed■administrative-services targeted to serve approximately three-thousand (3000) participants from July 1.
2019 through June 30,2020.
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher t. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

■ Page 3 of 4 , ^ .
I  . * ' •

Using the "Housing First" model and the development of Stabilization and Crisis Management
plans, the Vendors will facilitate participant's movement into sustained permanent housing while
providing connections with community and mainstream services to maximize participarit's ability to live
more independently.

HUD established the Contiriuum of Care concept to support .communities in their efforts to
address the problems of housirig and hbmelessness in a.coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic
fashion^ The Continuurh of Care serves three main purposes:,

'• A strategic planning process for addressing homeiesshess In the community.

.• A process, to engage broad-based, cohnmunity-wide involvement in addressing homeiesshess
.  on.a year-round basis. "

•  An opportunity for,communities to submit ah appIlcMion toNhe U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development br resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The following performarice measures/objectives will.be usedto measure coritract compliance and
vendor performance:

■i Annual complia.hce reviews shall be performed that include the collection of data relating to
, compliahce with'adminislralive .rulesand contract.ual agreements.-

•  .Statistical reports shal) be subrnitt'ed on a semi-anriua! basis .from, all funded vendors, including
■  ' - various derhdgraphic jnfoiTriatiori and Income and exp^ns'e'reporls including rhatch dpllars..

•  All vendors funded for rapid re-hpusing; transitional, permanent or coordinated entry housing,-
or outreach/supportjve services wiji be required to rhaintain tinriely and accurate data entry, Ih

•  . the New Hampshire Homeless Management Infprmatlbri Systehn, .'unless they are required by
•lawtpuseanalterhaterfieansofdatacoilection.T.heNH Horrieless Managemerit.lnfofmatlpn
System ^11 be.the primary. reporting tool for outcomes and activities of.shelter arid housing

'  . . progfanis funded through'this contract. . . •

As referenced In Exhibit C-1 of each' of these contracts, the Department reserves the right to;
exterid esich .agreement for up to two {()2). additional years, contingent upon satjsifactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and apprPval of the Govembr and Executive
Council. ' •

Should, the Gpy.empr.ahd Executive Couricil not authorize these requests. P^ermanent Housing,
ahd Coordinated Entry Vrdgrams and Supportive Services for New Hampshire homeless individuals arid
families.rriay not be available. In.their communities, and there maybe an increase In demand.for services
placed upon the region's id'cai vvelfare'authorities. It .may also cause ihdiyiduals arid/or families tp become
homeless. ' ■ :/.' '

Source, of funds: -100% Federaj Funds, from.the .U.S. fiepartmerit of Housing arid Urban
Development, Office of Coriirhunity Plahning and Developmerit, Catalog of Federal Dornestic Assistance
Nurriber (GF.DAj #14.267. . . - _

Area served: . Statewide

■
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His Excellency. Governor Christopher T; Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 4 of 4 .

In the. event that the Federal funds become no longer available. General funds will not be
requested, to support these programs.

Respectfully submitted,

rey A. Meyers
mmissioner •

"  j

I'. .

The De/xiri^ienioffJenHh and Huniati Services' Mission tojoin contnniniiies oiut familiesin providing ofiporldnilies for cilizens to achieve heollh and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version S/8/15)

SubjecC Continuum of Cure. Concord Communiiv Leasing II PH. SS'2020-BHS-Q4-PERMA>10

Notice: agreement and oH of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for opproval. Any informBtion that is private, conridcniial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to In writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State ofNew Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name
FIT/NHNH, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

122 Maricet Street

Manchester, NH 03101

1,5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)641-9441

1.6 Account Number

05-95-42-423010-7927-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$99,046

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1. 10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1. 11 Contractor Slgnatu^

-v^</

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Maureen Beauregard

1.13 Acknowledgement: Stale of New Hampshiro County of Hillstxtrough

On May 29. 2019 . before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. II, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

I.I 3.) Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
RUTH A. SYREK, NotflOT PuWe

My OommMon Expirts Septarrter 5« 2001

I.I3;2 Namc'and TiileofNolary or Justice of the Peace

Roth Syrek. Admin. Asst.. Notary Pubiic

1.14 />Siate Agency Si ^naiyre

16 Approval by IheTvH.

•  By:

Pate:si
iifirit

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

(

"j

ill
AdminTOration. Division of Personnel (if applicable)

Director, On:

T

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

On: HorV-C. 4 . 5-0

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

By: On:

Page I of 4
.'.s'ivr
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2. EMPL^VMENTOFCONTIV^CTOR/SERVICESTO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block I.I ("State"), engages
conrractor identified in block 1.3 ("Coniroctor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the aiiached
EXHreiT A which is incorpomtcd herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement docs not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
(he Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by ihe Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF agreement.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, ore
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall (he State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right (o terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such lerminaiion. The Stale
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, arid terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EJO^rorr B which l$ incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of Ihe contract price shal I be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, amd shall be ihe only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to Ihe Contractor other than the conlrect
price.

Page

5.3 The State reserves the righi to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in (his Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8. -

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, .state, county or municipal auihorilie.s
which impose any obligation or duty upon ihc Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabililics, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Stales, Ihe Contractor shall comply with all Ihe
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as suppiemcnicd by the
regulations of the United States Di^artment of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pen 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the Slate of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Stales access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenant.^, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.) The Contractor shall el its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in svriiing, during the lerm of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after (be
Completion Dale in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and sholl not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a corhbincd cffon to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, adminisiration or performance of this

2 of 4

Contractor Initials
DateMay29,2019
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Agreement. This provision shall survive (ermination of this \
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVEPfTOFDEFAULT/REMEDfES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of (he
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saiisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the dale of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, lerminaie.ihis Agreement, effective two
(2) days oher giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
-Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the dale of such notice uniil such lime as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
' (he Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or In equity, or both.

9.. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property.which has been received from
the Stale or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of (his Agreemeni for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.

Page 3

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an ea/iy tcrminalion of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, (he Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not latcrihan fifleen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ail Services performed, and (he contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of (he Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHTBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent coniractor, and is neiiKer an agent nor
an employee of the Stale. Ncilha the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind (he State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the Stale to its employees.

12.ASSICNMEhrr/DELECATiON/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of (he State. None of (he Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contr^tor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. rNDEMNlFlCATlON. The Comracior shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
Stale, its officers end employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against (he Stale, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on aecouni of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of Ihe
Contractor. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herun
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the tcrminalion of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Comracior shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounls
of not less than S1,000,000pcr occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80Ve of (he whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State ofNew
Hampshire.

of4
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14.3 The ConifBCtor shall furnish lo ihc Contraciing OfHcer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, e certiricaiefs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certiricaie(s) of
insurance for all renewol(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ccriificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificatefs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15. I By signing this agreement, (he Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers' Compensation
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
conrwciion with activities which (he person proposes to
undertoke pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Cornpensation In (he
manner described In N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable fenewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation .
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contracior. which might
arise under applicable Stale of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agrccmcni.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any' Event of Default shall be deemed'a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at (he
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1 !4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by Ihe Governor and
Executive Council of (he Stale of New Hampshire unless no

suduapproval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law. rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF ACREEM ENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of (he State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of (he parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed lo confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
(herein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the Interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth In the attached EXHIBIT C arc.Incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of Ihc provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and un^rsiaridings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description 0/ the language assistance services they will
provided to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful, access to their
programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective date: submitted to:

NH DNHS

Bureau of Housing Supports (BHS)
129 Pleasant Street

'  Concord. NH 03301

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire General
Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the services described herein, the
State, through the Bureau of Housing Supports, has the right to modify service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

1.3. Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State are
contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care (CoC) Grant. The Stale,
as the Collaborative Applicant for the Balance of State CoC. and/or, the recipient of the CoC
funding, has applied for the CoC Grant and will continue to perform due diligence In the
application process. However, the State makes no representation that it will receive the funds. In
no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or payment of any services perfomned by the
Contractor prior to the State's receipt of federal funds applied for in the .CoC Grant.

1.4. For the purposes of this agreemenl. the Department has Identified the Contractor as a
subrecipient. in eccordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

1.5. Notwithstanding the confidentiality procedures established under 24 CFR Part 578.103(b). US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), the HUD Office of the Inspector
General, and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized
representatives, must have the right of access to all books, documents, papers, or other records
of the Contractor that are pertinent to the CoC grant, in order to make audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcripts. These rights of access are not limited to the required retention period,
but last as long as the records are retained.

1.6. The Contractor shall maintain adherence to federal and state financial and confidentiality laws,
and agrees to comply with the program narratives, budget detail and narrative, and amendments
thereto, as detailed in the 2017 Notice of Funding Available (NOFA) CoC Project Application
approved by HUD.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide services according to HUD regulations outlined in Public Law 102-
550 and 24 CFR Part 578: CoC Program and other written, appropriate HUD policies/directives.

1.8. All programs shall be licenised to provide client level data into the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System (NH HMIS). Programs shall follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information required for data entry, accuracy of dala entered, and time required for data
entry. Refer to Exhibit K for Information .^Security requirements and Exhibit I for Privacy
requirements.

1.9. The Contractor shall cooperate fully with and answer all questions, related to this contract, of
representatives of the State or Federal agencies who may conduct a periodic review of
performance or an inspection of records.
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V10. The Contractor shall support the primary goalof this program which Is to facilitate the movement
of homeless and chronically homeless individuals and families to permanent housing and
maximum self-sufficiency.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System (CES) for all projects funded by the
CoC Program. Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG) Program, and Housing Opportunities for
Persons with AIDS (HOPWA) Program, in accordance with CoC Interim rule. 24 CFR Part 570.

2.2. The Contractor shall provide a Permanent Supportive Housing program comprised of six (06)
housing units.and twelve (12) t>eds serving homeless Individuals and or families, and which
includes, but is not limited to:

2.2.1. Utilization of the "Housing First" model, ensuring barriers to entering housing are hot imposed
t>eyond those required by regulation or statute, and will only terminate project participation for
the most severe reasons, once available options have been exhausted to help a participant
.maintain housing.

2.2.2. The development of a stabilization plan and crisis management plan with the participant, at
Intake and. at a minimum, annually. An ongoing Assessment of Housing and Supportive
Services is required, with the ultimate goal being assistance to the participant in obtaining the
skills necessary to live in the community independently.

2.3. The Contractor shell establish and maintain standard operating procedures to ensure CoC
program funds are used In accordance with .24 CFR 578 and must establish and maintain
sufficient records to enable HUD and BHS to determine Contractor requirement compliance,
including:

2.3.1. Continuum of Care Records: The Contractor shall maintain the following documentation
related to establishing and operating a CoC;

2.3.1.1. Records of Homeless Status. The Contractor shall maintain acceptable evidence of
homeless status in accordance wiih 24 CFR 576.500(b). .

2.3.1.2. Records of at Risk of Homelessness Status: The Contractor shall maintain records that
establish "at risk of homelessness" status of each Individual or family who receives CoC
homelessness prevention assistance, as Identified in 24 CFR 576.500(c).

2.3.1.3. Records of Reasonable Belief of Imminent Threat of Harm. The Contractor shall maintain
documentation of each, program participant who moved to a different CoC due to Imminent
threat of further domestic viotence, dating violence, sexual assault, or stalking, as defined
in 24 CFR 578.51(c)(3). The Contractor shall retain documentation that includes, but is
not limited to: i

2.3.1.3.1 The original Incidence of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking, only if the original violence is not already documented in the program
participant's case file. This may be written observation of the housing or service
provider; a letter or other documentation from a victim service provider, social worker,
legal assistance provider, pastoral counselor, mental health provider, or other
professional from whom the victim has sought assistance; medical or dental records;
court records or law enforcement records; or written certification by the program
participant to wrhom the violence occurred or by the head of household.
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2.3.1.3.2 The ■ reasonable belief of imminent threat of further domestic violence, dating
violence, or sexual assault or stalking, which would include threats from a third-party,
such as a friend or family member of the perpetrator of the violence. This may be
written observation by the housing or service provider; a letter or other documentation
from a victim service provider, social worker, legal assistance provider, pastoral
counselor, mental health provider, or other professional from whom the victim has
sought assistance; cunent restraining order; recent court order or other court records;
law enforcement report or records; communication records from the perpetrator of the
' violence or family members or friends of the perpetrator of the violence, iricluding

emails, volcemails. text messages, and social media posts; or a written certHication
by the program participant to whom the violence occurred or the head of household.

2.3.1.4. Records of Annual Income. For each program participant who receives .housing
assistance where rent or an occupancy charge is paid by the program participant, the
Contractor must keep the following documentation of annual income:

2.3.1.4.1. Income evaluation form specified by HUD and completed by the Contractor; and

2 3 1 4 2. Source documents (e.g.. most recent wage statement, unemployment compensation
slatemenl, public benefits statement, bank statement) for the assete held by the
program participant and income received before the date of the evaluation;

2.3.1.4.3. To the extent that source documents are unobtainable, a written statement by a
relevant third party (e.g.. employer, government benefits administrator) or the written
certification by the Contractor's intake staff of the oral verification by the relevant third
party of the Income the program participant received over the most recent period; or

2 3 1.4.4. To the extent that source documents and third-party verification are unobtainable, the
vvritten certification by the program participant of the amount of income that the
program participant is reasonably expected to receive over the three (3) month period
following the evaluation.

2.3.1.5. Program Partifr'nant Records. In addition to.avidence of homelessness status or et-rlsk-of-
homelessness status, as applicable, the Contractor must keep records for each program
participant that document:

2.3.1.5.1. The services'and assistance provided to that program participant, including evidence
that the Contractor has conducted an annual assessment .of services for those
program participants that remain In the program for more than a year and adjusted
the service package accordingly, and including case management services as
provided in 24 CFR 578.37(a)(l){ii)(F); and

2.3.1.5.2. Where applicable, compliance with the termination of assistance requirement in 24
CFR 578.91.

2.3.1.6. Housino Standards. The Contracfor must retain documentation of compliance, with the
housing standards In 24 CFR 578.75(b). including inspection reports.

2.3.1.7.. Services Provided. The Contractor must document the types of supportive services
provided under the Contractor's program and the amounts, spent on those services. The
Contractor must keep documentation that these records were reviewed at least annually
and that the service package offered to program participants was adjusted as necessary.

2.4. The Contractor shall maintain records that document compliance v^th;

2 4 1 The Qroanizalional conflict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 578.95(c).
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2.4.2. The Continuum of Care Board confiict-of-interest requirements in 24 CFR 570.95(b).

2.4.3. The Other Conflicts requirements in 24 CFR 570.95(d).

2.5. The Contractor shall develop, implement and retain a copy of the personal conflict-of-interest
policy that complies with the requirements in 24 CFR 570.95. including records supporting any
exceptions to the personal conflict-of-interest prohibitions.

2.6. The Contractor shall comply and retain documentation of compliance with:

2.6.1. The Homeless Participation requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 570.75(g).

2.6.2. The Faith-based Activities requirements in accordance with 24 CFR 578.07(b).

2.6.3. Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing bv maintaining copies of all marketing, outreach, and
other materials used to inform eligible persons of the program In accordance with 24 CFR
578.93(c). ^

2.6.4. Other Federal Reouirements In 24 CFR 578.99, as applicable.

2.6.5. Other Records Specified bv HUD. The Contractor must keep other records as specified by
HUD.,

2.6.6. The Contractor must retain copies of all procurement contracts and docurhentation of
compliance with the Procurement Requirements in 24 CFR 85.36 and 24 CFR part 04.

2.7. Confidentiality. In addition to meeting the specific confidentiality and security requirements for
HMIS data (76 FR 76917). the Contractor shall develop and Implement written procedures to
ensure;

2.7.1. All records containing protected identifying information of any individual or family who applies
for and/or receives Continuum of Care assistance shall be Kept secure and confidential as
required by this Agreement and state aixl federal laws and regulations;

2.7.2. The address or location of any family violence project assisted with Continuum, of Care funds
shall not be made public, except with written authorization of the person responsible for the
operation of the project; and

2.7.3. The address or location of any housing of a program participant will not be made public,
except es provided under a preexisting privacy policy of the recipient or subrecipient and
consistent with Slate and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality;

2.8. Period of Record Retention. The Contractor shall ensure all records, originals or copies made by
microfilming, photocopying, or other similar methods, pertaining to Continuum of Care funds are
retained for five (5) years following the Contract Completion Date and receipt of final payment by
the Contractor unless records are otherwise required to be maintained for a period in excess of
the five (5) year period according to state or federal law or regulation.

3. Program Reportina ReQulrements

3.1. The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1,1. Annual Performance Reoort (APRI: Within thirty (30) days after the Contract Completion
Dale, an APR shall be submitted to BMS that summarizes the aggregate results of the-Project
Activities, showing in particular how the Contractor is carrying out the project In the manner
proposed in the application submitted to HUD for the relevant fiscal year Notice of Funding
Availability (NOFA). The APR shall be in the form required or specified by the State, and
submitted to the address listed in section 1.1. Exhibit A; and
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3.1.2. Other Reoofts as requested by the State in compliance with NH HMIS policy.

4. Contract Administration

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff to attend all meetings or trainings requested
by BBS. including training in data security and confidentiality, according to state and federal laws.
To the extent possible. BBS shall notify the Contractor of the need to attend such meetings five
(5) working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Contractor shall inform BBS of any staffing changes within thirty (30) days of the change.
1  • , '

5. Performance fl^eaaures

5.1. The Contractor shall adhere to all terms and conditions as set forth in the BUD New Project
Application, federal fiscal year 2016, ffSF-424: and

5.1.1. The Contractor shall abide by the performance measures as detailed in all applicable HUD
regulations including, but not limited to. those outlined in 24 CFR Part 578; Continuum of
Care Program and Public Law 102-550.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall t>e accountable to all performance measures as detailed in the Annual
Performance Report Section 3.1.1. Exhibit A.

5.2. The Bureau Administrator of BBS, or designee. may observe performance, activities and
documents under this Agreement.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall Implement a Coordinated Entry System, as detailed in Section 2.1. Exhibit A,
in accordance with the CoC Program interim rule, 24 CFR Part 578 and as amended,

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a Pennanenl Supportive Bousing program as outlined in Section
2.2. Exhibit A and as outlined in other written HUD policies and directives as appropriate.

6.2.'1. Project outcomes shall include, but are not limited to:'

6.2.1.1. Participants exit homelessness faster, and once housed, remain stably housed.

6.2.1.2. Participants experience Increased connections to:

6.2.1.2.1. Mainstream benefit resources; employment and/or vocational rehab referrals;

6.2.1.2.2. Mental health and/or substance abuse service access end referrals; and
;

6.2.1.2.3. Service Coordination Partners for educational, vocational, employment and health
needs.

6.3. The Contractor shall provide accurate and timely reporting as detailed in Section 3.. Program
Reporting Requirements. Exhibit A.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

1. Permanent Supportive Housino Program Fundmo

1.1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services, the State agrees to pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed Form P-37. Block
1.6. Price Limitation and for the time period specified below.

1.2. This Agreement is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA). as follows:

T.2.1. NH General Fund; 0%

1.2.2. Federal Funds: 100%

1.2.3. CFDA#: 14.267

1.2.4. Grant Number: NH0060L1T001BQ6

1.2.5. Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD)

1.2.6. Program Title: Continuum of Care. Permanent Supportive Housing Program

1.2.7. Total Amount Continuum of Care;

1.2.7.1. not to exceed $99,045

1.2.6. Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;

1.2.8.1. Supportive Services: $15,956

1.2.8.2.1 Case Management $15,956

1.2.8.2. Leasing ^ $80,780

1.2.8.3. Administrative Expenses; $2.310

1.2.8.4. Total program amount: $99,046

1.2.8.5. Vendor Match (25%) $4,567

1.3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services In Exhibit A. Scope of Service in compliance with
funding requirements. Failure to meet the Scope of Services may jeopardize the Contractor's
current and/or future funding.

2. Financial Reports

2.1. As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in accordance
with 2 CFR part 200.

2.1.2. One (1) copy of the audited finandal report within thirty (30) days of the completion of said
report to the State at the following address:

NH OHHS

Bureau of Housing Supports
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301
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2.2. Conformdnce to 2 CFR part 200: Grant funds are to be used only In accordance with procedures,
requirements, and principles specified In 2 CFR part 200.

2.3. If the Contractor Is not subject to the requirements of 2 CFR part 200, the Contractor shall submit
one (1) copy of an audited financial report to the Department utilizing the guidelines set forth by
the Comptroller General of the United States in "Standards for Audit of Governmental
Organizations, Program Activities, and Functions,' within ninety (90) days after Contract/Grant
completion date.

3. Prelect Costs: Payment Schedule: Review bv the State

3.1. Project Costs: As used In this Agreement, the term "Project Costs' shall mean all expenses
directly or indirectly Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of Ihe Project Activities, as
determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in accordance with Public Law
102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in 2 CFR part 200 as revised from time to
time and with the rules, regulations, end guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit
subcontractors shall meet the requirements of 2 CFR part 200.

3.2. Continuum of Care funds may be used to pay for eligible costs listed in 24 CFR 576.39 through
576.63 when used to establish and operate projects under five program components: permanent
housing; transitional housing; supportive services only; HMIS; and, in some cases, homeless
prevention. Administrative costs are eligible for all components. All components are subject to
the restrictions on combining funds for certain eliglbie dctivilies In a single, project found in 24
CFR 578.87(c).

3.3. Match Funds:

3.3.1. The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73.

3.3.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

3.3.3. The Contractor must match all granl funds, except for leasing funds, with no less than
twenty-five (25) percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources. Cash match
must be used for the cost of activities that are eligible under subpart D of 24 CFR 576.
The Contractor shall:

3.3.3.1. Maintain records of the source end use of contributions made to satisfy the match
requirement in 24 CFR 578.73;

3.3.3.2. Ensure records indicate the grant and fiscal year for which each matchir>g
contribution Is counted;

3.3.3.3. Ensure records include methodologies that specify how the values of third party
in-kind contributions were derived; and

3.3.3.4. Ensure records include, to the extent feasible, volunteer services that are

supported by the same methods used to support the allocation of regular
personnel costs.

3.4. Payment of Project Costs:

3.4.1. The State agrees to provide payment on a cost reimbursement basis for actual, eligible
expenditures incurred in the fulTiliment of this Agreement, subject to the availability of
sufficient funds.
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3.4.2. The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 5. Expense Eligibility, Exhibit B. The Contractor must
have written epproval from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

3.4.3. Eligible expenditures shell be in accordance with the approved line item not to exceed an
amount as specified in this Exhibit, and defined by HUD under the provisions of Public
Law 102-550 and other applicable regulations.

3.4.4. Payment of Project Costs shall be made through the ulilixalion of funds as provided
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing
programs under the Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid ̂Transition to Housing
Act {HEARTH Act). Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Lew 102-550), in an amount
and time penod not to exceed as specified in Section 1.2. Exhibit 8.

3.4.5. Schedule of Payments;

3.4.5.1. All reimbursement requests for all Project Costs, including the final reimbursement
request for this Contract, shall be submitted by the tenth (10th) day of each month,
for the previous month, and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for
the amount of each requested disbursement along with a payment request form
and any other documentation required, as designated by the State, which shall be
completed and signed by the Contractor.

3.4.5.2. In lieu of hard copies submitted to the address listed in Section 2.1.2. Exhibit B.,
all invoices may te assigned an electronic signature.and emailed to:

housinQSUDDOflsinvoices@dhhs.nh.Qov

. 3.4.5.3. The Contractor shall keep records of their activities related to Department
programs and services, and shall provide such records and any additional
financial information If requested by the State to verify expenses.

3.5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs:

3.5.1. At any time during the performance of the Services, and upon receipt of the Annual
Performance Report. Termination Report or Audited Finar»cial Report, the State may
review all Project Costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.

3.5.2. Upon such review, the State shall disallow any items or expenses that are not determined
to be allowable or are determined to be in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by
written notice specifying the disallowed expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such
disallowance.

3.5.3. If the State disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to
pay such costs. Any amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement are
subject to recapture.

3.5.4. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees thai funding under
this Agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if (he
said services, products, required report submissions, as detailed In Exhibits A and B, or
NH-Hf^lS data entry requirements have not been satisfactorily completed In accordance
with the terms and conditions of .this Agreement.
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4. Use of Grant Funds

4.1. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P«37. changes limited to adjusting
amounts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within
the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances t>etw6en State Fiscal Years, may be made
by written agreement of both parties and may be made through the Budget Office without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council if needed and justified. ^

5. Expense Eliglbllltv

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care program funds specified in this Exhibit B from the HUD Continuum of Care
Program, for contract services.

5.2. Operatirlo Expenses:

5.2.1. Eligible operating expenses include:

5.2.1.1. Maintenance and repair of housing;

5.2.1.2. Property taxes and insurance (including property and car);

5.2.1.3. Scheduled payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the system and
expected replacement cost);

5.2.1.4. Building security for a structuTe where more than fifty (50) percent of the units or
area is paid for with grant funds;

5.2.1.5. Utilities. Including electricity, gas and water; and

5.2.1.6. > Furniture and equipment. •

5.2.2. Ineligible costs include:

5.2.2.1. Rental assistance and operating costs in the same project;

5.2.2.2. Operating costs of emergency shelter atxl supportive service-only facilities; and

5.2.2.3. Maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of maintaining and repalrir»g
the housing are included in the lease.

5.3. Supportive Services

5.3.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations In 24 CFR 578.53,
and are available to individuals actively participating in the permanent housing program.

5.3.2. Eligible costs shall include:

5.3.2.1. Annual assessment of Service Needs. The costs of assessment required by
578.53(a)(2); .

5.3.2.2. Assistance with moving costs. Reasonable one-time moving costs are eligible and
include truck rental and hiring a moving company;

5.3.2.3. Case management. The costs of assessing, arranging, coordinating, and
monitoring the delivery of individualized services to meet the needs of the program
pdrlicipant(s) are eligible costs;
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5.3.2.4. Child Care. The costs of establishing and operating child care, and providing child-
care vouchers, for children from families experierKing homelessness. Including
providing meals and snacks, and comprehensive and coordinated developmental
activities are eligible;

5.3.2.5. Education Services. The costs of improving knowledge and basic educational
skills are eligible;

5.3.2.6. Employment assistance and job training. The costs of establishing and operating
employment assistance and job trainirig programs are eligible, including
classroom, online and/or computer Instruction, on-the-]ob Instruction, services
that assist individuals in securing employment, acquiring leaming skills, and/or
increasing earning potential. The cost of providing reasonable stipends to
program participants in employment assistance and job training programs is also
an eligible cost;

5.3.2.7. Food. The cost of providing meals or groceries to program participants is eligible;

5.3.2.8. Housing search and counseling services. Costs of assisting eligible program
participants to locate, obtain, and retain suitable housing are eligible;

5.3.2.9. Legal services. Eligible costs are the fees charged by licensed attorneys and by
person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys, for advice and
representation in matters that interfere with homeless Individual or family's ability
to obtain and retain housing;

5.3.2.10. Life Skills training. The costs of teaching critical life management skills that may
never have been learned or have been lost during course of physical or mental
illness, domestic violence, substance abuse, and homelessness are eligible.
These services must be necessary to assist the program participant to function
Independently in the community. Component life skills training are the budgeting
of resources and money management, household management, conflict
management, shopping for food and other needed items, nutrition, the use of
public transportation, and parent training:

5.3.2.11. fvtentai Health Sen/ices, Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of mental
health conditions that are provided by licensed professionals. Component
services are crisis Interventions; counseling; individual, family, or group therapy
sessions; the prescription of psychotropic medications or explar^tions about the
use and management of medications; and combinations of therapeutic
approaches to address multiple problems;

5.3.2.12. Outpatient health services. Eligible costs are the direct outpatient treatment of
medical conditions when provided by licensed medical professionals;

5.3.2.13. Outreach Services. The costs of activities to engage persons for the purpose of
providing immediate support and intervention, as well as identifying potential
program participants, are eligible;

5.3.2.14. Substance abuse treatment services. The costs of program participant Intake and
assessment, outpatient treatment, group and individual counseling, and drug
testing are eligible. Inpatieht detoxification and other inpatient drug or alcohol
treatment are ineligible;

5.3.2.15. Transportation Services are described in 24CFR 578(e) (15);
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5.3.2.16. Utility Deposits. This form ol assistance consists of paying for utility deposits.
Utility deposits must be one-time, paid to utility companies;

5.3.2.17. Direct provision of services. If the service described in 24CFR 578.53(e) (1) • (16)
of this section Is being directly delivered by the recipient or subrecipient, eligible
costs for those services are described in 24 CFR 578(e) (17);

5.3.2.18. Ineligible costs. Any cost not described as eligible costs under this section is not
an eligible cost of providing supportive services using Continuum of Care program
funds. Staff training and costs of obtaining professional llcensure or cerlincations
needed to provide supportive services are not eligible costs; and

5.3.2.19. Special populations. All eligible costs are eligible to the same extent for program
participants who are unaccompanied homeless, youth; persons, living with
HIV/AIDS; and victims of domestic violence, dating violence, sexual assault, or
stalking.

5.4. Rental Assistance

5.4.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for horneless individuals and families.

5.4.2. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program participant who is already receiving
rental assistance, or who is living in a housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating
assistance through other federal. Stale, or local sources.

5.4.3. Rental assistance must be administered in accordance with the policies artd procedures
established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR 578.7(a) (9) and 24 CFR 578.51. and
may be:

5.4.3.1. Short term., up to 3 months of rent;

5.4.3.2. Medium term, for 3-24 months; or
«  I

5.4.3.3.^ Long-term, for longer than 24 months.

5.4.4. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to exceed 2 months of
renl.

5.4.5. An advance payment of the last month's rent may be provided to the landlord, in addition
to the security deposit and payment of first month's rent.

5.4.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit If the rent is reasonable, as deterrrilned
by the Contractor, In relation to rents l>eing charged for comparable unassisted units,
taking into account the location, size. type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management
and maintenance of each unit.

5.4.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one month's rent to pay
for any damage to housing due to the action of a program participant. For Leasino funds
onlv: Property damages may be paid only from funds paid to the landlord from security
deposits.

5.4.8. Housing must be In compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction In which the housing is located regarding the condition of
the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.4.9. The Contraclor must provide one of the following types of rental assistance: Tenant-based.
Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental assistance as described in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.4.9.1. Tenant-based rental assistance Is rental assistance in which program participants
choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside. When necessary to
facilitate the coordination of supportive services, recipients and subreclpients may
require program participants to live in a specific area for their entire period of
participation, or in a specific structure for the first year and in a specific area for
the remainder of their period of participation. Short and medium term rental
assistance provided under the Rapid Re-Housing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.4.9.2. Sponsor-based rental assislance is provided through contracts between the
recipient arxJ sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private, nonprofit
organization, or a community mental health agency established as a public
nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside In housing owned or
leased by the sponsor.

5.4.9.3. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the ovyner of
an existing stnjcture. where the owner agrees to lease the subsidized units to
program participants. Program participants will not retain rental assislance if they
move.

5.4.9.4. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance, program
participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at least one year,
which Is terminable for cause. The leases must be automatically renewable upon
expiration for terms that are a minimum of one month long, except on prior notice
by either party.

5.5. Administrative Costs:

5.5.1. Eligible administrative costs include:

5.5.1.1. The Contractor may use funding awarded under this part, for the payment of
project administrative costs related to the planning and execution of Continuum
of Care activities. This does not include staff and overhead costs directly related
to carrying out activities eligible under 24 CFR 578.43 through 578.57, because
those costs are eligible as part of those activities; and

5.5.1.2. General management, oversight, and coordination. Costs of overall program
management, coordination, monitoring and evaluation. These costs include, but
are not limited to. necessary expenditures for the following:

5.5.1.2.1. Salaries, wages, and related costs of the staff of the contractor's, or other staff
engage In program administration.

5.5.1.2.1.1. In charging costs to this category, the contraclor may include the entire
salary, wages, and related costs allocable to the program of each person
whose primary responsibilities with regard to the program^ involve
program administration assignments, or the pro rata share of the salary,
wages, and related costs of each person whose job includes any program
administration assignments. The Contractor may only use one of these
methods for each fiscal year grant. Program administration assignments
Include the following:
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5.5.1.2.1.1.1. Preparing program budgets and schedules, and amendments, to
those budgets and schedules;

6.5.1.2.1.1.2. Developing systems for assuring compliance with program
regulrements;

5.5.1.2.1.1.3. Developing interagency agreements and agreements with
subrecipients and contractors to carry out program activities;

5.5.1.2.1.1.4. Monitoring program activities for progress and compliance with
program requirements:

5.5.1.2.1.1.5. Preparing reports and other documents related to the program for
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.6. Coordinating the solution of audit and monitoring findings;

5.5.1.2.1.1.7. Preparing reports and other documents directly related to the program
submission to HUD;

5.5.1.2.1.1.8. Evaluating program resujts against stated objectives;

5.5.1.2.1.1.9. Managing or supen/lsing persons whose primary responsibilities with
regard to the program include such assignments as those described
in sections 5.5.1.2.1.1.1. through 5.5.1.2.1.1.8, above. Exhibit B.

5.5.1.2.1.1.10. Travel costs incurred lor official business In carrying out the program;

5.5.1.2.1.1.11. Administrative services performed under third party contracts or
agreements. Including such services as general legal services,
accounting sen/ices, and audit services;

5.5.1.2.1.1.12. Other costs for goods and services required for administration of the
• program, including such goods and services as rental or'purchase of
equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and rental and
maintenance, but not purchase, of office space;

5.5.1.2.1.1.13. Training on Continuum of Care requirements. Costs of providing
training on Continuum of Care requirements and attending HUD-
Sponsored Continuum of Care trainings; and

5.5.1.2.1.1.14. Environmental review. Costs of carrying out the environmental review
responsibilities under 24 CFR 578.31.

5.6. Leasino:

When the Contractor Is leasing the structure, or portions thereof, grant funds may be used
to pay for 100 percent of the costs of leasing a structure or structures, or portions thereof,
to provide housing or supportive services to homeless persons for up to three (3) years.
Leasing funds may not be used to lease units or structures owned by the Contractor, their
parent organization, any other related organization{s). or organizations that are meml>ars
of a partnership, where the partnership owns the structure, unless HUD authorized an
exception for good cause.

5.6.1. Requirements:
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5.6.1.1. Leasing structures. When grants are used to pay rent lor at! or part of a structure
or structures, the rent paid must be reasonable in relation to rents being charged
In the area for comparable space. In addition, the rent paid may not exceed rents
currently being charged by the same owner for comparable unassisted space.

5.6.1.2. Leasing Individual units. When the grants are used to pay rent for Individual
housing units, the rent paid must reasonable In relation to rents being charged for
comparable units, taking into account (he location, size. type, quality, amenities,,
facilities, and management services, in addition, the rents may not exceed rents
currently being charged for comparable units, and (he rent paid may not exceed
HUD*determined fair market rents.

5.6.1.3. Utilities. If electricity, gas. and water are included in the rent, these utilities may
be paid from leasing funds. If utilities are not provided by landlord, these utility
costs ere operating costs, except for supportive service facilities. If the structure
is being used as a supportive service facility, then these utility costs are a
supportive service cost.

5.6.1.4. Security deposits and first and last month's rent. The Contractor may use grant
funds to pay security deposits, in an amount not to exceed 2 months of actual
rent. An advance payment of last month's rent .may be provided to the landlord in
addition to security deposit and payment of the first month's rent.

5.6.1.5. Occupancy agreements and subleases. Occupancy agreements and subleases
are required as specified in 24 CFR 578.77(a).

5.6.1.6. Calculation of occupancy charges and rent. Occupancy charges and rent from
program participants must be calculated as provided in 24 CFR 578.77.

5.6.1.7. Program Income. Occupancy charges and rent collected from program
participants are program income and may be used as provided under 24 CFR
578.97.

5.6.1.8. Transition. Refer to 24CFR 578.49(bX8)

5.6.1.9. Rent paid may only reflect actual costs and must be reasonable In comparison to
rents charged in the area for similar housing units. Documentation of rent
reasonableness must be kept on file by the Contractor.

5.6.1.10. The pxjrtion of rent paid *Mth grant funds may not exceed HUD-determlned fair
market rents.

5.6.1.11. The Contractor shall pay Individual landlords directly: funds may not be given
directly to participants to pay leasing costs.

5.6.1.12. Property damages may only be paid from money paid to the landlord for security
deposits.

5.6.1.13. The Contractor cannot lease a building that it already owns to itself.

5.6.1.14. Housing must be In compliance with all State and local housing codes, licensing
requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act. and any other
requirements of the jurisdiction In which the housing is located regarding the
condition of the structure and operation of the housing or services.
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5.7. The Conlractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heal, hoi water): however,
the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified In HUD regutatlons (24
CFR 578.77). Other services such as cable, air conditioning, telephone. Internet access,
cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's option.

5.8. The Contractor shall have any staff charged In full or part to this Contract, or counted as match,
complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

6. Contractor Financial Management System

6.1. Fiscal Control; The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting procedures
which assure proper disbursement of. and accounting for. grant funds and any required
nonfederal expenditures. This responsibilily applies to funds disbursed in direct operations of
the Contractor.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with 2 CFR part
200 or such equivalent system as the State may require.
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gPFCIAL PRQVISIQNS

ConlTBctofS Obligations: The Conlfsctor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible •
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and Stale Laws: if the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of pctermlnatlon; Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose end shaB be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documeniatlon; In addition to Ihe determinaiion forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility deiefminalions that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Conlraclor understands thai all applicanls for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees thai all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form end that each applicant or re-appticanl shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Grotuitlos or Kickbacks; The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of Ihe Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sut>-agfeemenl if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sul>-Conlfaclor.

»  '

6. Retroactive Payments; Notwithstanding anytWng to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Coniracior for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to Ihe date on which the ir^dividual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase; NolNvilhstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate svhich exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or olher third party
funders for such service, if at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder lo reimburse Items of expense olher than such costs, or has received paymeni
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by Ihe Contractor lo ineligible individuals
or olher third party funders. the Oepartmeni may elect to:

V. 7.1. Renegotiate Ihe rates for payment hereunder. in which event new rales shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
ExWbtiC-Spodol Provisions ContractorlnlUals |
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in svttlch event failure to make
Such repayment shall constitute an Event-of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of indrviduats for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants end agrees (o maintain the follov4ng records during the Contract Period:

6.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents end other data evidencing and reflecting oil costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performartce of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contrector during the Corttrect Period, said records to be .
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase reguisltions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials. Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor lime cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include ail records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. M^ical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shell retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of Steles. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations' and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Activities and Functions, issu^ by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Coniract for purposes of audit, examinaiion. excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities; in addition to and not in any way in timltation of obligations of the. Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that (he Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, ail payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shallnol
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to slate laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such Information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or diKlosure by any party of any informdlion concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian. aaA-,
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at Ihefollowing
limes if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify Ihe rate of payment hcreunder. Such Financial Reports shall t)e submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Conlrocl. The FlnaJ Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of Ihe parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to t>e performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the lermlnalion of the Contract) shall terminate, provided hpwever. that if. upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include ihefollowing
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the Stale
of New Hampshire, Department of Health end Human Services, with funds provided In part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or' -
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownerahlp: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from OHMS before printir^, production,
distribution or use. The OHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced. Including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from OHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations; In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, lha Contractor shall comply with ail laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorilies and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duly upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operalion of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all limes comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants end agrees Ihat, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Stole Office of the Fire Marshal and
Ihe local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR). If II has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees. il will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000. or public grantees
with fewer than 50.employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient win provide an

. EEOP Certificalion Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdis/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166. Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorlgin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1966 end Tlile Vi of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

16. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Empioyoo Whlstlobtower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections esiablishedat .
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of Ihe workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall Insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the sinipiified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountabilily for the funciioi^s). Prior to
sut>conlraclinQ. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
Kjnclion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible lo ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. fi^onilor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis
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19.4. Provide to OHMS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed •

19.5. OHMS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor.'shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS; Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting pdnciples established
in accordance with state and.federal laws, regulations, njles and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT; NH Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL; If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. tJNIT: For each service that the Contractor Is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department'end specified
in Exhibit 6 of the Contract.

20.5. FEOEFIAUSTATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale la^, regulations, rules, orders, and
• policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from lime to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDEf^L FUNDS; Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will nol supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Previsions Contractor initials
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE
/

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Aoreemeni. is^replaced as follows:

4. CQI^DITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to llie contrary, all obligations of the Stale
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds.
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds effected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or olheAwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
Stale be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In,
the event of a reduction, termination or rnodificalion of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Accountfs) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account
Number, or eny other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1 ? Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The Stale may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of.
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising Its
■option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of earty
/■ termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreernent, Including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and esiablishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall prompUy provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to. any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State

^  as requested.
10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving

services under the Agreement are iransitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in ihe Transition Plan.

10.5 The Conuaclor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the Stale as described above.

2. Ronowat

'  2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

ExrtWl C-1 - 'R«v4aiona/Cxc©plion9 lo SlandanJ Coolnia Uftguago ConUoctor Inilials,
n„,„ May 29, 2019
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contraclor's representative, as identified In Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTfWENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS-
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
WorVplaceActof 1988(Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle 0: 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages -
21681-21691). and require certificatiori by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub<ontractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a-
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
cerllfication or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send It to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions thai will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to infonm employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given e copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) thai, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or olherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees musi provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExWbli D - Ceniricflilon fegarding Drug Frc« Vendor Initials
WortcplaceRequtremenlj oq ortiO
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one^of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action.against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

'  1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,1.2, 13.1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the perforniance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, slate, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name; FIT/NHNH, Inc.

May 29. 2019 e
Date NameTMaureen Beauregard 0 '

Title: president

Exhlbli 0 - CertiflMllon fog8rc}tr>g Drug Froe Vendor ir^ilal«/ ^
WwVfdaceRoquiremenu ' kj" .. oo
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 ol Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Governnnenl wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified.in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Aasistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Sen/ices Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation., renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or subcontractor). <

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by'specifrc mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to'
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certificattpn is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

May 29, 2019
Date Namfe: Maureen Beauregard

President

Exhibit E - Certlflcatkin Regarding Lobbing Vendor initials
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CERTtFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSlBiLiTY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3"of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Pert 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections. 1.11 and 1.12 of (he General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submltling this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set oul below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below v/ill not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the.certification. The certification or explanation wiD be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish e certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification In this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rerKfered en erroneous certification, In addition to other remedies,
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction.* 'debarred,' 'suspended.' 'ineligible.' 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant,* 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal.* 'proposal,* and
'voluntarily excluded.' as used in this clause, have the meanings set but In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. It shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitling this proposal that it will include the
clause tilled 'Certirication Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibillty and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS, without modrfication, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which It determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not requir^ to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certrfication required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exniblt f - CentriuUon Rogtrdlng Oe&amitnt. Suspension Vendor Initials
And OtnerResponsfbCity Matters oA4n
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingty enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that ii and its
principals:
11.1. ere not prosently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment,'declared Ineligible, or

voluntartly excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; vk)lation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or lo^l) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification;'and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appHcatiorVproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, Stale or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing end submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief (hat It and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, susper^ed, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded frorn'parlicipation in'this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. wtiere the prospective lower tier participent is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective panicipani shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitattons for lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

May 29,2019
Date Narr/e: Maureen Beauregard

President

Exhibit F - Ceriiricatlon Regarding Debamienl. Suspension Vendor Inilisbj
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor idenliried in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:.

- the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3769d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under (his statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or beneHts. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by •
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benents. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- (he Civil Rights Act of 1064 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 >34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681. 1683. 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

• the Age Oiscriniinatlon Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discriminalton on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does nol include
employment discrimination;

28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NdAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilol Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the gront. False ceitificiatlon or violation of the certincatlon shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

ExNbdG

Vendor
C«nt9ci0on C9Tf*m*«(Birfqi<VT«nap«ftirr<nolo FMv4 NandMrMrwtfoa Cquri TfMViwvof f49t4rMMOro«rruOon*

tnd iWrlrtrowy

JT.'iofli/M Paoeiofz ■ Dale May 29. 2019



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F8EF4F5-4A97-44A7-B8O8-006923EE4C83

Now Hampshire Oepartment of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certtficeiion;

I. By signing arid submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

May PDIQ .
Date Name! ft^aureen Beauregard

Title: - .. ,
President

^Jame! Manroon Roaiirenarrl U
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Lew 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as (he Pro-Children Act oM994
(Act), requires thai smoking not be permitted In any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contract^ for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residerKes. fecililtes funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a cK/il monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section1.3of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identlTied in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known.as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

May 29. 2019
Date Nanfe: Maureen Beauregard

President

Emtbil H - Ccftlllcstion Regsfdlng Vendor IniUat
Envtrontnemai Tohacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate' shall rnean the Vendor and subcontractors and agents of the Vendor that receive,
use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered Entity"
shall mean the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1 Peflnltlons.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

cj, 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aooreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Ooerations' shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

I

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Ciinical Health
. Act, TitleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Informallon, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information' shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information' in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. _ , ̂
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I. 'Reautfed bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by lav/ in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the Anrverican National Standards
Institute. ,

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160. 162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information^

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any rnanner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI: >
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d.. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held conftdentially artd
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose (or which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. ■ If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObllQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0  The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.
\  '

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

. e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third parly beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivln^PHI

Exhlbfil vendor iniiial»j3^
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from" such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of.enablir>g Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. within ten (10) business days of receiving 8 written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
.requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained In a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounling of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered .Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Ag>eement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObliQations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly rK)tify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P'37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set fodh herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
" terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the

alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary. '

(5) fl^iscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoutatorv References. Ail terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^
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e. Seareoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services FIT/NHNH Inc.

>tate Name of the Vent

""^iqriature ofSignature of Authcfri2>id Representative ^igrfature of Authorized Repres^fitalwe

PJa f 1 M (J) Maureen Beaureqard
Name of Authorized Representative ' Name of Authorized Representative

Presirfent

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date * ^ Date
May?9 ?ni9
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CEftTIRCATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA^ COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25 000. the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Depertment of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
V Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Fundir>g agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of perfomiance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS ff)
10. Totat compensation and names of the lop five executives if:

10.1. f^ore than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually end

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of Ihe General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensalion Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's represenlatlve. as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificalion:
The below named Vendor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH Department
of Health and Human Services and to comply svith all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and TranspareiKy Act.

Vendor Name: FIT/NHNH, Inc.

f^av 29. 2019 // JrqUC ̂
Dale NarAe: Maureen Beauregar

Title: President

-Met
NarAe: Maureen Beaur

cu«HKSnt«ri) Page 1 of 2
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FORMA

As (he Vendor identiHed in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to (he
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Thg DUNS number for vour entrtv is: 825360399 '

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, end/or
cooperative egreemenls?

NO YES

3.

If the answer to d2 above Is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following;

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a).'-7^(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to 03 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name;

Name:

Name;

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/C>HH%>nOTl>
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations whore persons other than authorized users af>d for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2  "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 600-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of,Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the, other such as a" medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including wthout limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally identifiable Information.

Confidential Inrormatlon also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services -. of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User' means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data In accordance with the terms of this Contract,

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability "and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that polenlially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characterislics wnlhout the owner's knowtedge. instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic

V5. Ust updato 1(W)9/18 Gxhibil K ConUactof
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mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the Stale of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the Stale, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
'or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C.19. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying inforrnation wtiich is linked
or linkable to'a specific Individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9  "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45.C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Proleclton of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12 "Unsecured Protected Health information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that Is accredited by

J  the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A.. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited'to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner-that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response tp a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI

' pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by. any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the intemet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transm^itting DHHS
data.

/

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User Is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data', the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google. Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mall within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless networ1(. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information vrill be
transmitted or accessed. .

10. SSH-File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data wllj be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information..

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parlies must:

A. Retention'

•  1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain ail electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HlTECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anli-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
. Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. if the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for • example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-86, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify, in writing at
time of the data deslructiori^^and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The writtdn certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy ail hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor vrill maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information iifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate, authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End.
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
siipportirtg the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum

" match those for the Contractor, including breach notirication requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of

.  obtaining and maintaining access to any Department systemfs"). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for rnaintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable'the Department and

. Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the. Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability, In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. IncludinQ but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, end must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope tliat is not less

than the level arvl scope of requirements applicable to federal agertcies. including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for Individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the conndentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized^use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is rv}) less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/verKJor/index.htm
for the Department of information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the Slate's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in iSection VI. This Includes a confidential Information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire networic.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained urKler this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A. at>ove.
imptemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or Inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable date derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

Q. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable infotmatlon. and in all cases,
such data must t)€ encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, al the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 305. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally Identifiable information Is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incldenls as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and
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5. Oelermine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must t>e addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer

DHHSInform8tionSecurityOfflce@dhhs.nh.gov
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